
 

 

LICENSING COMMITTEE 
Regulatory Committee 
Agenda 
 
Date Tuesday 26 November 2013 

 
Time 9.30 am 

 
Venue Lees Suite, Civic Centre, Oldham, West Street, Oldham, OL1 1NL 

 
Notes 
 

1. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST- If a Member requires any advice on 
any item involving a possible declaration of interest which could affect 
his/her ability to speak and/or vote he/she is advised to contact Paul 
Entwistle or Lori Hughes in advance of the meeting. 
 
2. CONTACT OFFICER for this Agenda is Lori Hughes Tel. 0161 770 5151 
or email lori.hughes@oldham.gov.uk  
 
3. PUBLIC QUESTIONS – Any member of the public wishing to ask a 
question at the above meeting can do so only if a written copy of the 
question is submitted to the Contact officer by 12 Noon on Thursday, 21 
November 2013. 
 

 MEMBERSHIP OF THE LICENSING COMMITTEE IS AS FOLLOWS: 
 Councillors Alexander, Azad, S Bashforth, Battye, Beeley, Briggs, 

Brownridge, P Dillon, Garry, McLaren (Vice-Chair), Moores (Chair), Price, 
Sedgwick, Sheldon and Shuttleworth 
 

 

Item No  

1   Apologies For Absence  

2   Urgent Business  

 Urgent business, if any, introduced by the Chair 

3   Declarations of Interest  

 To Receive Declarations of Interest in any Contract or matter to be discussed at 
the meeting. 

4   Public Question Time  

 To receive Questions from the Public, in accordance with the Council’s 
Constitution. 

5   Minutes of Previous Meeting (Pages 1 - 4) 

Public Document Pack



 

 

 The Minutes of the Licensing Committee held on 11th June 2013 are attached for 
approval. 

6   Licensing Activity Report (Pages 5 - 18) 

 The purpose of this report is to inform Members of the activities undertaken to 
discharge the Council’s Licensing function during the period June 2013 to 
October 2013.  

7   Scrap Metal Dealers Policy (Pages 19 - 40) 

 The purpose of this report is to ask Members to approve a policy in relation to 
licences issued under the Scrap Metal Dealers Act 2013, which commenced on 
1st October 2013.  

8   Private Hire & Hackney Carriage Re-test items (Pages 41 - 48) 

 The purpose of this report is to ask Members to approve amendments to the 
items that fall under a major or minor fail on the private hire and hackney 
carriage vehicle compliance test.  

9   Private Hire Operator Conditions (Pages 49 - 68) 

 The purpose of this report is to ask Members to approve changes to the current 
Private Hire Operator Conditions.  

10   Online Driver checks with DVLA (Pages 69 - 72) 

 The purpose of this report is to ask Members to approve a policy in relation to 
checking driver licence records on-line with DVLA.  

11   Scheme of Delegation for Licensing (Pages 73 - 76) 

 The purpose of this report is to update the scheme of delegation for licensing 
matters and delegate the Executive Director (Neighbourhoods) with the 
necessary powers to further delegate operational decisions to Officers.  

 



 

LICENSING COMMITTEE 
11/06/2013 at 9.30 am 

 
 

Present: Councillor Moores (Chair) 
Councillors Alexander, Azad, Battye, Briggs, Brownridge, 
P Dillon, Garry, McLaren (Vice-Chair), Price, Sedgwick and 
Shuttleworth 
 

 Also in Attendance: 
 PC Geraldine Cooper Greater Manchester Police 
 Alan Evans Group Solicitor 
 John Garforth Trading Standards & Licensing 

Manager 
 Steven Garratt Constitutional Services 
 Chief Inspector Andy 

Harty 
Greater Manchester Police 

 

 

1   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors S 
Bashforth and Beeley. 
 

2   URGENT BUSINESS   

There were no items of urgent business received. 
 

3   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   

Councillor Moores declared a prejudicial interest in Item 8, 
‘Local Government (miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982 - 
Twelve Month Review of Committee Decision’, as the Chair of 
Governors at Mills Hill Primary School. He left the room during 
consideration of the item and took no part in the discussion or 
vote. 
 

4   PUBLIC QUESTION TIME   

No Public Questions had been received. 
 

5   MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING   

RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting held on 12th March 
2013 were agreed as a correct record. 
 

6   LICENSING ANNUAL REPORT   

The Committee considered a joint report of the Executive 
Director, Neighbourhoods, and the Divisional Commander, 
Greater Manchester Police, which informed of the activities 
undertaken to discharge the Council’s Licensing function during 
the period 1 April 2012 to 31 March 2013. It provided details of 
operational activities conducted, licences issued and updated on 
current projects including the Divisional Commanders report on 
behalf of Greater Manchester Police. Clarification and updates 
were also given on facts and figures contained in the report. 

Agenda Item 5

Page 1



 

 
A query was raised in relation to music in supermarkets and it 
was clarified that it was not a licensing function of the Council, 
but was instead covered by Performing Right Society licenses. 
 
RESOLVED that the report be noted. 
 

7   PUBLIC HEALTH & ALCOHOL   

The Chair reported that this item had been withdrawn from the 
agenda. 
 

8   LOCAL GOVERNMENT (MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS) 
ACT 1982 - TWELVE MONTH REVIEW OF COMMITTEE 
DECISION  

 

Councillor Moores left the meeting for this item, and Councillor 
McLaren, Vice Chair, took the Chair for this item only. 
 
The Committee considered a report of the Executive Director, 
Neighbourhoods, which sought to review a decision the 
Committee made on 12th June 2013, in relation to the re-
designation of certain streets, within the Borough of Oldham, 
from ‘Consent / Licensed’ streets to ‘Prohibited’ street for the 
purpose of street trading. 
 
Members discussed issues around school safety and it was 
reported that in relation to Baytree Avenue and Hunt Lane the 
original decision had assisted with addressing school safety 
concerns on those roads. 
 
RESOLVED that 
1. The report be noted. 
2. The original decision made on 12th June 2012 be endorsed. 
 

9   PRIVATE HIRE STAR RATING SCHEME   

The Committee considered a report of the Executive Director, 
Neighbourhoods, which informed of results to a consultation on 
proposed changes to the Private Hire Star Rating Scheme, and 
sought to implement the proposed changes in light of the 
consultation responses. 
 
Members raised that a lack of responses, combined with the 
majority of the responses received being in support, implied that 
there were few objections to the proposed changes. 
 
RESOLVED that the proposed changes to the Private Hire Star 
Rating Scheme below be implemented: 
1. That 75% of a private hire operator’s vehicle fleet must pass 
its annual compliance test, undertaken at the Council’s M.O.T. 
station, first time; 
2. All operators to submit a weekly return to the Licensing 
Officer detailing any new vehicles taken on and any which have 
left, and; 

Page 2



 

3. Operators of a 4 star company must keep a copy of the 
M.O.T. / compliance sheet / vehicle inspection document, from 
the half yearly test undertaken by the company’s nominated 
M.O.T. testing station; and, upon request, produce these 
records to an authorised officer. 
 

10   PRIVATE HIRE AND HACKNEY CARRIAGE DRIVERS 
VRQ/NVQ  

 

The Committee considered a report of the Executive Director, 
Neighbourhoods, which highlighted issues that had arisen in 
relation to the requirement that all new applicants for a private 
hire or hackney carriage drivers licence complete the Level 2 
VRQ / NVQ in Road Passenger Transport within twelve months 
of their licence being granted. Members were informed that the 
training centres which provided the free qualifications were 
currently some distance from Oldham, and there was some 
uncertainly in relation to other organisations that may also be 
able to provide the qualifications without cost due to funding 
arrangements. 
 
RESOLVED that: 
1. The requirement for an applicant to first obtain the VRQ 
before a licence is granted be removed; 
2. The requirement for an applicant to complete the NVQ within 
twelve months of a licence being granted be retained; 
3. The situation be reviewed at the next Licensing Committee 
meeting. 
 

11   PRIVATE HIRE AND HACKNEY CARRIAGE - RETEST 
ITEMS  

 

The Committee considered a report of the Executive Director, 
Neighbourhoods, which sought approval of the items that fall 
under a major or minor fail on the private hire and hackney 
carriage vehicle compliance test. 
 
Clarification was given in respect of the difference between the 
work involved between minor and major fail, and areas that were 
exempt. 
 
RESOLVED that the table attached to the report as Appendix 1, 
to be used to determine whether a ‘major’ or ‘minor’ retest fee 
applies, be approved. 
 

12   COMPOSITION OF LICENSING PANELS 2013-14   

RESOLVED that the composition of Panels for the forthcoming 
Municipal Year be agreed. 
 
 

The meeting started at 9.30 am and ended at 10.48 am 
 

Page 3



Page 4

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
 
 
 

 
Licensing Activity 
Update  
 
Report of Executive Director - Neighbourhoods 
 
Portfolio Responsibility: Cooperatives & Neighbourhoods 

 
Licensing Committee  

 
 
26 November 2013 

 
Officer Contact:  John Garforth 

Ext No:    5026 

 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 6

Page 5



Licensing/0000717 2

LICENSING COMMITTEE      26 NOVEMBER 2013      
 
 
LICENSING ACTIVITY UPDATE 
 
REPORT OF THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR - NEIGHBOURHOODS   
 

 
1.0 PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to inform Members of the 

activities undertaken to discharge the Council’s Licensing 
function during the period June 2013 to October 2013. 

 
 
2.0 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY  
 
2.1 This report provides Members with details of operational 

activities conducted; licences issued and updates on current 
projects.  

 
3.0 STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES 
 
3.1 There are two strategic objectives that relate to the Licensing  

Team.  
 
3.2 To work with businesses to ensure they are licensed and 

compliant is the first. This covers: 
 

• Proactively licensing premises and individuals engaged in 
alcohol supply, entertainment and late night refreshment. 
 

• Participation in Pubwatch schemes, partnership projects 
and joint, intelligence led inspections to ensure licence 
conditions are not being breached. 

 

• Promotion of the four licensing objectives and three 
gambling objectives. 

 
3.3 The second relates to ensuring safe passenger journeys, in 

safe licensed vehicles with safe licensed drivers. This 
covers: 
 

Page 6



Licensing/0000717 3

• Undertaking inspections of licensed vehicles. 
 

• Vetting new applicants for badges to ensure they are fit 
and proper 

 

• Ensuring that passengers are safe in vehicles by 
responding to complaints and investigating offences and 
breaches of conditions. 

 
 
 
4.0 RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
4.1 Members are invited to: 
 
 i) note the report; and 
 

ii) consider the implications of the report on future  
licensing decisions. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 7



Licensing/0000717 4

LICENSING ACTIVITY UPDATE 
 
5.0 INTRODUCTION 
 
5.1 This report provides information on the activities undertaken 

to discharge the Council’s licensing function during the 
period June 2013 to October 2013. 

 
5.2 This report gives a brief update on the main activities 

undertaken and decisions made. 
 
6.0 LICENSED PREMISES 
 
6.1 The Licensing Act 2003 is governed by four licensing 

objectives:- 
o Prevention of crime and disorder 
o Prevention of public nuisance 
o Public Safety 
o Protection of children from harm 

 
6.2 A number of applications have been considered by the 

Licensing Panel which are detailed below: 
 

Nature of Application 
 

Outcome 

Asda, Shaw – Variation of 
premises licence 
 

Application granted 

New Off Licence, Elm Road, 
Oldham 
 

Application granted 

Application for a Street 
Trading Consent 

Application refused 

New Off Licence – 
Crossbank St, Oldham 

Application granted 
 
 

Sul Lago, Failsworth – 
Variation of hours 
 

Application granted 

Application for a Street 
Trading Consent 

Application granted 
 
 

 

Page 8



Licensing/0000717 5

6.3 During the period 156 complaints were received in relation to 
licensed premises and other non taxi related matters which 
are detailed below: 

 
  

Premises Licence 

Beyond Permitted Hours 3 

Breach of Condition 6 

Health and Safety 1 

Illegal Activity 3 

Not  Licensed / Registered 5 

Breach of Condition 4 

Unauthorised Licensable 

Activities 2 

Underage Sales 3 

 Anti Social Behaviour 3 

Noise Problems 23 

Club Premises Certificate 
Breach of Condition 3 

Noise Problems 1 

Street Trading 

Anti Social Behaviour 1 

Breach of Condition 10 

Drivers Attitude / Behaviour 4 

Illegal Activity 2 

Not  Licensed / Registered 6 

Noise Problems 6 

Scrap Metal Dealers Not Licensed / Registered 6 

Highways Licences 

Not  Licensed / Registered 10 

Unlicensed Skip 33 

Unlicensed Scaffolding 4 

Object / goods placed on 

highway 16 

Obstruction 1 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 9



Licensing/0000717 6

 
 
 
 
7.0 UNDER AGE SALES 
 
7.1 Under Age Sales continue to be a priority area for Trading 

Standards Officers which result in operations to target 
premises where intelligence suggests attempts to purchase 
alcohol or other restricted goods by children may be taking 
place. 

 
7.2 Between April and September 2013 there were 32 attempts 

to purchase alcohol made by under age volunteers. 6 (18%) 
resulted in sales in the following areas:- 

  

• Royton x 1 

• Shaw x 2 

• Chadderton x 1 

• Oldham (St. Mary’s) x 1 
 
 
 
   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 10



Licensing/0000717 7

8.0 LICENSED DRIVERS AND VEHICLES 
 
8.1 Officers continue to work with the private hire and hackney 

trade to ensure effective communication and consultation 
takes place.  

 
8.2 Below are details of the applicants and drivers brought 

before the Drivers Licensing Panel since November 2012. 
 

 NEW/RENEWAL APPLICANTS BROUGHT TO PANEL 
FOR CONVICTIONS 

Granted  1 

Refused 2 

 
Since the October meeting the following reviews have taken 
place. 

 

DRIVERS BROUGHT TO PANEL TO REVIEW THEIR 
LICENCES 

Battery 28 day suspension 

Failing to stop and report 
accident and driving without due 
care and attention 

 
Licence revoked 

Theft 14 day suspension 

Attempt rape Licence revoked 

Driver conduct Warning issued 

Driver conduct 14 day suspension 

Failure to report an accident 28 day suspension 

Plying for hire 28 day suspension 

Speeding and failure to declare 
offence 

56 day suspension 

Defective tyres and failure to 
declare conviction 

56 day suspension 

Speeding Warning issued 

 
 Other matters heard before the panel related to the failings to 
 properly manage as a private hire operator. Three 
 companies had their star rating reduced to 2 and one 
 company received a warning.   
 
 

Page 11



Licensing/0000717 8

8.3 There have been 82 complaints in relation to licensed 
 drivers, vehicles and operators during the last quarter 
 ranging from conduct to driving ability and over charging. 
 Officers continue to work with drivers and operators to 
 educate and support them.  
 
   

Hackney Carriage Vehicle 

Breach of Bylaw 1 

Breach of Condition 1 

Dangerous Driving 1 

Lost Property 2 

 Poor Vehicle Condition 1 

Hackney Carriage Driver 

Dangerous Driving 2 

Drivers Attitude / Behaviour 13 

Illegal Activity 2 

Breach of Parking Regulations 1 

Overcharging for Journey 4 

Illegal Ply for Hire 1 

Smoking in Vehicle 1 

Private Hire Driver 

Drivers Attitude / Behaviour 18 

Guide Dogs 1 

Not  Licensed / Registered 1 

Smoking in Vehicle 1 

Dangerous Driving 5 

Failure to report accident 5 

Breach of Parking Regulations 5 

Overcharging for Journey 4 

Illegal Ply for Hire 3 

Unlicensed Driver 1 

Private Hire Vehicle 
Breach of Condition 1 

Poor Vehicle Condition 1 

 

Private Hire Operator 

Breach of Condition 2 

Not  Licensed / Registered 1 

Issues with PHO management 1 

Smoking on Premises 1 

 

 

 
 
 

Page 12



Licensing/0000717 9

9.0 PRIVATE HIRE/HACKNEY OPERATORS STAR RATING  
 SCHEME 
 
9.1 Current results are shown below with their comparison to 

previous performance in brackets. 
 
9.2 In addition the hackney carriage fleet of 85 vehicles have 

recently been awarded their stars. Their breakdown is as 
follows: 

 4 star  = 78 
 3 star  = 6 
 2 star  = 1 
 

  
Stars 

Awarded 
 

 
Standards to be achieved 

 
 
 

An excellent company, who have met the 
highest standards, have independent 
testing of their vehicles and have trained at 
least 50% of their drivers in basic first aid 
and safe driving techniques. 
 

 
 
 

A good company working to improve 
customer satisfaction, working with the 
Licensing Authority and ensuring safe 
journeys for passengers in safe vehicles.  
 
 

 
 
 

A satisfactory company that meets the 
basic required standards. 

 

 

 

A company that often fails to meet required 
standards but is on an improvement 
journey. 

 

No stars 

 

A company with serious failings that is 
under review by the Licensing Authority 
and is persistently failing to meet required 
standards. 

 
 
 
 

Page 13



Licensing/0000717 10

Stars 
 

Company (previous audit rating in brackets) 

 
 
 
 

Cartax Radio Cars (4) 
Delta (4) 
Five Star (4) 
Lady Jayne Limousines (4) 
Marwoods (new) 
Oldham Airport Transfer (4) 
Oldham Wheelchair Travel (4) 
Status 3 (4) 
Street Cars (4) 
Village Cars (3) 
 

 
 

 

Chadderton Cars (3) 
Crompton & Royton (3) 
Embassy (3) 
Failsworth Cars (3) 
First Class travel (3) 
Graham’s Traveliner (3) 
Handleys Travel (3) 
Home ‘n’ Away (3) 
JDE Chauffeur Services (3) 
Limeline (3) 
Moorside Travel (3) 
Nigel’s Travel (3) 
Oldham & Bardsley Cars (3) 
Pennine Private Hire (3) 
Pete’s Cars (3) 
Premier Cars (3) 
Rollers/Telecars (3) 
Royton Minibuses (3) 
Skyline (3) 
Startax (3) 
Ten Ten (3) 
Tommyfield Cars (3) 
UK Cars (3) 
West Ridings Yorks Ward (new) 
 

 
 
 

911 Event Management (new) 
Bluebird Broadway (2) 
First Choice County Cars (4) 
Lees Cars Car 5000 (2) 
Manchester Music Tours (2) 
Millrake Travel (3) 
Motown (3) 
Royton Cars (3) 
Stafford L (new) 
Stirling Travel (2) 
Waterhead & Sheddings Cars (new) 
Xpress cars (2) 

Page 14



Licensing/0000717 11

 
10.0 VEHICLE TESTING DATA 
 
10.1 Officers have recently started to collate data concerning the 
 pass rates of scheduled tests undertaken on licensed 
 vehicles. The data is recorded below: 
  

Month Tests Taken Passed Failed 

Sept 12 139 86 (62%) 53 

Oct 12 124 77 (62%) 47 

Nov 12 173 101 (58%) 72 

Dec 12 142 96 (68%) 46 

Jan 13 164 113 (69%) 51 

Feb 13 112 70 (62.5%) 42 

Mar 13 135 76 (56%) 49 

Apr 13 170 101 (59%) 69 

May 13 135 88 (65%) 47 

June 13 128 75 (59%) 53 

July 13 137 84 (61%) 53 

Aug 13 110 72 (65%) 38 

Sept 13 141 81 (57%) 60 

 
 
 
11.0 LICENCES IN FORCE 
 
 

 
LICENCE TYPE 

 

As at 
21.10.13 

As at 
12.2.13 

As at 
12.10.12 

Private Hire Driver’s 
Licence  

959 988 1016 

Private Hire Vehicle 
Licence 

781 803 813 

Private Hire Operators 
Licence 

46 46 47 

Hackney Carriage 
Driver’s Licence 

106 117 127 

Hackney Carriage 
Vehicles 

85 85 85 

Dual driver licences 93 80 67 

Total 2070 2119 2155 

Page 15



Licensing/0000717 12

12.0 RANDOM VEHICLE CHECKS 
 
12.1 The latest licensed vehicle check operation was conducted 
 on the 31st July 2013. On this date 28 vehicles were tested of 
 which 13 had licences suspended for defects found.  
 
12.2 The table below shows a breakdown of the results together 

with a comparison against the previous operation. 
 
 

JULY 2013 RANDOM VEHICLE INSPECTIONS 
 

28 Vehicles Tested 

26 Private Hire  2 Hackney Carriage 

9 Passed (35%)   1 Passed  

 17 Failed (65%)  1 Failed 

  12 Licences Suspended 
(46%) 

  1 Licence Suspended 

 Pass rate 35% 
  

OCTOBER 2012 RANDOM VEHICLE INSPECTIONS 
 

46 Vehicles Tested 

34 Private Hire 12 Hackney Carriage 

15 Passed (44%) 4 Passed (33%) 

 19 Failed (56%) 8 Failed (67%) 

 11 Licences Suspended 
(32%) 

 3 Licences Suspended 
(25%) 

 Pass rate 41% 
 
12.3 Due to more detailed criteria being implemented this year 
 Officers feel this is the reason more vehicles have failed. 
 
13.0 SCRAP METAL DEALERS 
 
13.1 On the 1st October 2013 the Scrap Metal Dealers Act 2013 
 came into force. To date the Council has received over fifty 
 applications for either collector or site licences for 
 businesses operating within the Borough. This significant 
 piece of legislation aims to combat the growing trend of 
 metal theft by increasing regulatory powers and 
 requirements placed on businesses. 

Page 16



Licensing/0000717 13

  
14.0 LEGAL UPDATE 
 
14.1 The changes to licensing legislation in the last twelve months 
 seems to set to continue into 2014. 
 
14.2 The long awaited report from the Law Commission on the 

review of private hire and taxi legislation has been delayed 
and is not set to be published in April 2014. This will 
hopefully result in the Government publishing a Bill to take 
through Parliament before the next election. 

 
14.3 Alcohol and entertainment under the Licensing Act 2003 
 remains in the spotlight with further proposals to deregulate 
 areas of entertainment licensing and to consider abolishing 
 personal licences. 
 
15.0 LEGAL SERVICES’ COMMENTS 
 
15.1 Not applicable – information report. 
 
16.0 ENVIRONMENTAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
16.1 None 
 
17.0 HEALTH AND SAFETY IMPLICATIONS 
 
17.1 None 
 
18.0 COMMUNITY COHESION IMPLICATIONS (INCLUDING 

CRIME AND DISORDER IMPLICATIONS IN 
ACCORDANCE WITH SECTION 17 OF THE ACT) 

 
18.1 Effective implementation of the powers under the Licensing 

Act and the Gambling Act makes a positive contribution to 
community cohesion. 

 
19.0 FORWARD PLAN REFERENCE 
 
19.1 This is not a Key Decision 

Page 17



Page 18

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

LICENSING COMMITTEE 

Scrap Metal Dealers Act 2013 
Policy  

Report to Executive Director - Neighbourhoods 

Portfolio Responsibility: Cooperatives & Neighbourhoods  

 

26 November 2013  

 

Officer Contact: Russell Williams 

Ext. 3472 

 
 
 

Purpose of Report 

The purpose of this report is to ask Members to approve a policy in relation to 
licences issued under the Scrap Metal Dealers Act 2013, which commenced on 1st 
October 2013. 

Recommendations 

Members are recommended to:- 
 

a) note the report; 

b) approve the policy attached at appendix I;   

Agenda Item 7

Page 19



 

Page 2 of 5 Licensing\0000718 26 November 2013 

LICENSING COMMITTEE 

SCRAP METAL DEALERS ACT 2013 – POLICY 
REPORT TO EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR - NEIGHBOURHOODS 
PORTFOLIO RESPONSIBILITY: COOPERATIVES & NEIGHBOURHOODS 

1 Purpose of Report 

1.1 The purpose of this report is to ask Members to approve a policy in relation to licences 
issued under the Scrap Metal Dealers Act 2013, which commenced on 1st October 
2013. 

2 Recommendations 

2.1 Members are recommended to:- 

a) note the report; 

b) approve the policy attached at appendix I;   

3 Introduction  

3.1 The Scrap Metal Dealers Act 2013 creates a revised regulatory regime for the scrap 
metal recycling and vehicle dismantling industries. The 2013 Act repeals the Scrap 
Metal Dealers Act 1964 and the Vehicle Crime Act 2001, replacing them with a more 
robust licensing regime that gives a local authority the powers to refuse the grant of a 
licence where the applicant is deemed unsuitable; and the powers to revoke a licence 
should a licence holder become unsuitable.  

3.2 The 2013 Act aims to raise the standards across the scrap metal industry and to help 
achieve this, licenced operators will need to keep detailed records of their transactions; 
and verify the identity of those selling scrap metals to them.  

3.3 In addition to replacing Scrap Metal Dealers Act 1964 and the Vehicle Crime Act 2001, 
the 2013 Act revises the definition of a ‘Scrap Metal Dealer’ so as to take into account 
the modern way in which people collect and deal in scrap metal.  

3.4 The 2013 Act provides for two types of Scrap Metal Dealer licences, a ‘Site Licence’ 
and a ‘Collectors Licence’, both of which last for three years.  

Site Licence 

A site licence is applicable where the licence holder has a physical site(s) that they use 
to carry on their business as a scrap metal dealer. This licence allows the licence holder 
to accept scrap metal from any of the sites listed on the licence; and to transport scrap 
metal to and from the sites listed in the licence. 

Collectors Licence  

A collector’s licence is applicable where the licence holders business consists of 
collecting scrap metal, for example by going from door to door asking for scrap. This 
licence allows the licence holder to collect scrap metal from within the boundaries of the 
local authority issuing the licence. A separate licence would is needed from each local 
authority within whose boundary’s a person wishes to operate.  

Page 20



 
 

Page 3 of 5 Licensing\000000 {insert date of meeting} 

 

3.5 The 2013 Act makes it an offence to carry on a business as a scrap metal dealer 
without a licence. 

3.6 The 2013 Act also allows the Council to seek a ‘closure order’ on scrap metal dealers 
that carry on their business without being licensed to do so. 

4 Current Position  

4.1 The provisions of the Act relating to the submission of applications came into effect 
came into force on the 1st of October 2013.  

4.2 Since the 1st of October 2013 existing business have been applying for a licence under 
the new Act.  

4.3 The Council do not currently have a policy relating to scrap metal dealers. 

5 Proposals  

5.1 Officers have drawn up a proposed policy, which is attached at appendix I.  

5.2 The policy will provide information to prospective applicants, and licence holders, on 
what the Council expects in relation carrying on a business as a scrap metal dealer.  

6 Options / Alternatives 

6.1 Members have the option to:- 

a) adopt the proposed policy as presented at appendix I; 

b) continue to operate without a policy; 

7 Preferred option  

7.1 The preferred option would be for Members to adopt the policy as presented at 
appendix I. 

Taking this option will provide clear guidance for prospective applicants, Members and 
existing licence holder. 

8 Legal Services Comments 

8.1 A local authority must not issue or renew a scrap metal licence unless it is satisfied that 
the applicant is a suitable person to carry on business as a scrap metal dealer.  In 
determining whether the applicant is a suitable person, the authority may have regard 
to any information which it considers to be relevant, including in particular whether the 
applicant or any site manager has been convicted of any relevant offence or has been 
the subject of any relevant enforcement action, any previous refusal of an application 
for the issue or renewal of a scrap metal licence (and the reasons for the refusal), any 
previous refusal of an application for a relevant environmental permit or registration 
(and the reasons for the refusal), any previous revocation of a scrap metal licence (and 
the reasons for the revocation) and whether the applicant has demonstrated that there 
will be in place adequate procedures to ensure that the provisions of the Act are 
complied with.  The authority must also have regard to any guidance on determining 
suitability which is issued from time to time by the Secretary of State.  An application for 
a licence must be accompanied by a fee which is to be set locally by each local 
authority on a cost recovery basis, but local authorities will have a duty to have regard 

Page 21



 
 

Page 4 of 5 Licensing\000000 {insert date of meeting} 

 

to guidance issued by the Secretary of State which will outline the issues that should be 
considered by local authorities when setting the fee and what activities the fee can 
cover. (A Evans) 

9 Financial Implications 

9.1 None 

10 Environmental and Health & Safety Implications 

10.1 Environmental Health are consultees on all application, and can make representations 
against an application for a licence  

11 Community Cohesion Implications [including Crime & Disorder Implications in 
accordance with Section 17 of the Act] and Equalities Implications 

11.1 The guidelines relating to the relevance of convictions are intended to protect all sectors 
of the community. 

12 Background Papers 

12.1 The following is a list of background papers on which this report is based in accordance 
with the requirements of Section 100(1) of the Local Government Act 1972.  It does not 
include documents which would disclose exempt or confidential information as defined 
by the Act : 

File Ref: Records held in Directorate 
Officer Name: Russell Williams 
Contact No: 3472 

13 Appendices  

13.1 Appendix I –Proposed Policy 

Page 22



 

Page 5 of 5 Licensing\0000718 26 November 2013 

 

Page 23



Page 24

This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
 
 
 

Scrap Metal Dealers 

Policy 
 

November 2013 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 25



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

{PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK}

Page 26



 

 

  

Contents 

 

 

 

 

Page 27



 

Page 4 of 15 

  

1. Introduction 

1.1 The Policy 

1.1.1 This document states Oldham Council’s (‘the 

Council’) policy on the regulation of Scrap Metal 

Dealers in its capacity as the relevant local 

authority for the purposes of the Scrap Metal 

Dealers Act 2013.  

1.2 The Law 

1.2.1 The Scrap Metal Dealers Act 2013 (“the Act”) 

received Royal Assent on 28 February 2013. The 

Act repeals the Scrap Metal Dealers Act 1964 (and 

linked legislation) and Part 1 of Vehicles (Crime) 

Act 2001 creating a revised regulatory regime for 

the scrap metal recycling and vehicle dismantling 

industries. 

1.2.2 The Act maintains local authorities as the 

principal regulator, but replaces the old 

registration system with a full licensing regime. It 

grants power to refuse a licence to “unsuitable” 

applicants and a power to revoke licences if the 

licence holder becomes “unsuitable”. 

1.2.3 The Act requires a scrap metal dealer to obtain a 

licence in order to carry on business as a scrap 

metal dealer. 

2. Definition of a Scrap Metal 

Dealer 

2.1 Definition  

2.1.1 A person carries on business as a scrap metal 

dealer if: 

(a) they wholly or partly buy or sell scrap metal 

(whether or not sold in the form it was 

bought); or 

(b) they carry on business as a motor salvage 

operator (see 2.1.3). 

2.1.2 The selling scrap metal merely as surplus 

materials or as a by-product of manufacturing 

articles is NOT to be regarded as ‘carrying on a 

business’ as a scrap metal dealer. 

2.1.3 Motor salvage operation is defined in the Act as a 

business that consists wholly or mainly of: 

(a) recovering  salvageable  parts  from motor  

vehicles  for  re-use  or  sale  and selling the 

remainder of the vehicle for scrap; 

(b) buying written-off vehicles, repairing and 

reselling them; 

(c) buying or selling motor vehicles which are 

to be the subject of any of the activities 

mentioned in (a) or (b); 

(d) wholly or mainly in activities falling within 

paragraphs (b) and (c); 

2.1.4 Scrap metal includes: 

(a) Any old, waste or discarded metal or 

metallic material; and 

(b) Any product, article or assembly which is 

made from or contains metal and is broken, 

worn out or regarded by its last holder as 

having reached  the  end of its useful life.  

2.1.5 Scrap metal does not include: 

(a) Gold;  

(b) Silver; 

(c) any alloy of which 2% or more by weight is 

attributable to gold or silver. 

3. Types of Licence  

3.1 Type of Licence  

3.1.1 Anyone wishing to operate a business as a scrap 

metal dealer will require either: 

(a) a site licence; or  

(b)  a collector’s licence; 

3.1.2 The licence is valid for three years and permits 

the licence holder to operate within the 

boundaries of Oldham. 

3.1.3 A person may hold more than one licence issued 

by different local authorities but may not hold 

Page 28



 

Page 5 of 15 

  

more than one licence issued by any one 

authority. 

3.2 Site Licence  

3.2.1 The site licence authorises the licence holder to 

carry on business at the site(s) identified in the 

licence. 

3.2.2 The site licence must include: 

(a) the name of the licensee; 

(b) the name of the authority; 

(c) identify all the sites in the authority’s area 

at which the licensee is authorised to carry 

on business; 

(d) the name of the site manager of each site; 

(e) the date of expiry. 

3.2.3 The site licence also permits the licence holder to 

act as a collector. 

3.3 Collectors Licence 

3.3.1 The collector’s licence authorises the licensee to 

carry on business as a mobile collector within the 

boundaries of Oldham. 

3.3.2 The collector’s licence must include: 

(a) the name of the licensee; 

(b) the name of the authority; 

(c) the date of expiry; 

4. Applicant Suitability  

4.1 General  

4.1.1 The Council must determine whether the 

applicant is a suitable person to carry on a 

business as a scrap metal dealer; and may not 

issue a licence unless satisfied the applicant is 

suitable. 

4.1.2 In determining a person’s suitability the Council 

will have regard to:- 

(a) Statutory Guidance; 

(b) It’s Policy. 

4.1.3 Notwithstanding the existence of this policy, the 

Council, when determining a person’s suitability 

for the purposes of the Act, will treat each case 

on its own individual merits.  

4.2 Determining Suitability 

4.2.1 As well as its policy and statutory guidance, the 

Council, when determining a person’s suitability, 

may have regard to any other information it 

considers relevant, in particular, but not limited 

to: 

(a) whether the applicant or site manager has 

been convicted of any relevant offence; 

(b) whether the applicant or site manager has 

been the subject of any relevant 

enforcement action; 

(c) any previous refusal of an application for 

the issue or renewal of a scrap metal 

licence (and the reasons for the refusal); 

(d) any previous refusal of an application for a 

relevant environmental permit or 

registration (and the reasons for the 

refusal); 

(e) any previous revocation of a scrap metal 

licence (and the reasons for the 

revocation); 

(f)  whether the applicant has demonstrated 

that there will be in place adequate 

procedures to ensure that the provisions of 

this Act are complied with. 

4.2.2 In this section: 

“site manager” means an individual proposed 

to be named in the licence as a site manager 

“relevant offence” means an offence which is 

prescribed for the purposes of the Act in 

regulations made by the Secretary of State, and 

“relevant enforcement action” means 

enforcement action which is so prescribed by 

regulations.

Page 29



 

Page 6 of 15 

  

4.2.3 In determining whether a company is suitable to 

carry on business as a scrap metal dealer, the 

Council will have particular regard as  to whether 

any of the following are a suitable person: 

(a) any director of the company; 

(b) any secretary of the company; 

(c) any shadow director of the company (that is 

to say, any person in accordance with  

those  directions  or  instructions  the  

directors  of  the  company  are accustomed 

to act). 

4.2.4 In determining whether a partnership is suitable 

to carry on business as a scrap metal dealer, the 

Council will have particular regard as to whether 

each of the partners are a suitable person. 

4.2.5 The Council must also have regard to any 

guidance on determining suitability which is 

issued from time to time by the Secretary of State 

4.2.6 The Council may consult other persons regarding 

the suitability of an applicant, including, but not 

limited to: 

(a) any other local authority; 

(b) the Environment Agency; 

(c) the Natural Resource Body for Wales; 

(d) an officer of a police force; 

4.2.7 If the applicant or any site manager has been 

convicted of a relevant offence, the Council may 

include in the licence one or both of the following 

conditions: 

(a) that the dealer must not receive scrap 

metal except between 9am and 5pm on any 

day; 

(b) that all scrap metal received must be kept 

in the form in which it is received for a 

specified period, not exceeding 72 hours, 

beginning with the time when it is received. 

4.2.8 Having regard to the objectives of the Act the 

Council have determined there will be a 

presumption to refuse an application where the 

applicant or any other person required to be 

named or identified in the application has been 

convicted of any of the relevant offences laid 

down in the Act.  

4.2.9 The Act deems the following as relevant offences 

for the purpose of ascertaining an applicants 

suitability:- 

• An offence under section 1, 5, or 7 of the 

Control of Pollution (Amendment) Act 1989; 

• An offence under section 170 or 170B of the 

Customs and Excise Management Act 1979(5), 

where the specific offence concerned relates 

to scrap metal; 

• An offence under section 110 of the 

Environment Act 1995; 

• An offence under sections 33, 34 or 34B of the 

Environmental Protection Act 1990; 

• An offence under section 9 of the Food and 

Environment Protection Act 1985; 

• An offence under section 1 of the Fraud Act 

2006, where the specific offence concerned 

relates to scrap metal, or is an environment-

related offence; 

• An offence under section 146 of the Legal Aid, 

Sentencing and Punishment of Offenders Act 

2012; 

• An offence under sections 327, 328 or 330 to 

332 of the Proceeds of Crime Act 2002; 

• Any offence under the Scrap Metal Dealers Act 

1964; 

• Any offence under the Scrap Metal Dealers Act 

2013; 

• An offence under sections 1, 8,9,10, 11, 17, 18, 

22 or 25 of the Theft Act 1968(13), where the 

specific offence concerned relates to scrap 

metal, or is an environment-related offence; 

• Any offence under Part 1 of the Vehicles 

(Crime) Act 2001; 

• An offence under sections 85, 202, or 206 of 

the Water Resources Act 1991; 

 

Page 30



 

Page 7 of 15 

  

• An offence under regulation 38 of the 

Environmental Permitting (England and Wales) 

Regulations 2007; 

• An offence under regulation 38 of the 

Environmental Permitting (England and Wales) 

Regulations 2010; 

• Any offence under the Hazardous Waste 

(England and Wales) Regulations 2005; 

• Any offence under the Hazardous Waste 

(Wales) Regulations 2005; 

• An offence under regulation 17(1) of the 

Landfill (England and Wales) Regulations 2002; 

• Any offence under the Pollution Prevention 

and Control (England and Wales) Regulations 

2000; 

• Any offence under the Producer Responsibility 

(Packaging Waste) Regulations 2007; 

• Any offence under the Transfrontier Shipment 

of Waste Regulations 1994; 

• Any offence under the Transfrontier Shipment 

of Waste Regulations 2007; 

• Any offence under the Waste (Electrical and 

Electronic Equipment) Regulations 2006; 

• An offence under regulation 42 of the Waste 

(England and Wales) Regulations 2011; 

4.2.10 While the Act states the Council must have regard 

to the above-mentioned relevant offices, the 

Council is not limited to taking into account only 

those offences. As such the Council may consider 

other offences that, in the Councils opinion, may 

be relevant in determining an applicant’s 

suitability.  

4.2.11 Having regard to the objectives of the Act the 

Council have determined there will be a 

presumption to refuse an application where the 

applicant or any other person required to be 

named or identified in the application has been 

the subject of any of the following forms of 

enforcement action within the period of three 

years prior to the application: 

 

(a) closure notice pursuant to the Act; 

(b) closure order pursuant to the Act; 

(c) action for recovery of possession of out of 

date or discontinued licences. 

4.2.12 Having regard to the objectives of the Act, the 

Council has determined it will consider the 

following offences, or enforcement actions 

relating to any person relevant to the licence, as 

being of particular relevance to the suitability of 

the licence holder: 

(a) Written warning relating to scrap metal 

licence compliance; 

(b) Waste regulations 2011 – enforcement, 

compliance and stop notices; 

(c) Permitting regulations notices; 

(d) Planning Breach of Condition / Enforcement 

Notices; 

(e) Statutory nuisance abatement notice; 

(f) Breach of statutory nuisance abatement 

notice;  

4.2.13 The authority is aware of its duty not to fetter its 

discretion and, notwithstanding the matters that 

the Council may take into account when 

determining a person’s suitability, each case shall 

be treated on its own individual merits.  

5. Revocation of Licence / 

Imposition of Conditions  

5.1.1 The Council may revoke a scrap metal licence if it 

is satisfied that the licensee does not carry on the 

business of scrap metal dealing at any of the sites 

identified in the licence. 

5.1.2 The Council may revoke a licence if it is satisfied 

that a site manager named in the licence does not 

act as site manager at any of the sites identified in 

the licence. 

5.1.3 The Council may revoke a licence if it is no longer 

satisfied that the licensee is a suitable person to 

carry on business as a scrap metal dealer and the 

Council shall have particular regard to any 

Page 31



 

Page 8 of 15 

  

“relevant offences” and “relevant enforcement 

action” and to those matters contained in section 

4 of this policy. 

5.1.4 If the licensee or any site manager named in a 

licence is convicted of a relevant offence, the 

Council may vary the licence by adding one or 

both of the conditions set out in paragraph 4.2.7. 

5.1.5 A revocation or variation comes into effect when 

no appeal is possible in relation to the revocation 

or variation, or when any such appeal is finally 

determined or withdrawn. 

5.1.6 If the Council considers that the licence should 

not continue in force without conditions, it may 

by notice provide: 

(a) that, until a revocation comes into effect, 

the licence is subject to one or both of the 

conditions set out in paragraph 4.2.7, or 

(b) that a variation under this paragraph comes 

into effect immediately. 

5.1.7 All licences issued by the Council pursuant to the 

Act remain the physical property of the Council 

and must be returned to the Council as required 

on expiry or revocation of the relevant licence. 

5.1.8 Action may be taken for the recovery of any 

licence not returned as required by the Council 

and any such action may be taken into account in 

relation to any future application for a licence. 

6. Supply of Information  

6.1.1 This section applies to information which has 

been supplied, to the Council, under this Act 

relating to scrap metal licence or to an application 

for, or relating to, such licence. 

6.1.2 The Council must supply any such information to 

any of the following persons who request it for 

purposes relating to this Act: 

(a) any other local authority; 

(b) the Environment Agency; 

(c) the Natural Resources Body for Wales; 

(d) an officer of a police force. 

6.1.3 This section does not limit any other power the 

Council may have to supply that information. 

7. Register of Licences  

7.1.1 The Environment Agency maintains a register of 

scrap metal licences issued by authorities in 

England and each entry will record: 

(a) the name of the authority which issued the 

licence; 

(b) the name of the licensee; 

(c) any trading name of the licensee; 

(d) the address of the site identified in the 

licence; 

(e) the type of licence; and 

(f)    the date on which the licence is due to 

expire; 

7.1.2 The registers are to open to the public for 

inspection. 

8. Notification Requirements  

8.1.1 An applicant for a scrap metal licence, or for the 

renewal, or far a variation to a licence, must 

notify the Council of any changes which materially 

affect the accuracy of the information which the 

applicant has provided in connection with the 

application. 

8.1.2 A licensee who is not carrying on business as a 

scrap metal dealer in the Oldham area must notify 

the Council within 28 days from the date on which 

the licence holder ceased to be carrying on their 

business.  

8.1.3 If a licence is issued to a business under a trading 

name the licensee must notify the Council of any 

change to that name within 28 days of the change 

occurring.  

8.1.4 The Council must notify the Environment Agency, 

of – 

(a) any notification given to the Council under 

paragraph 8.1.1 or 8.1.2 

Page 32



 

Page 9 of 15 

  

(b) any variation made by the Council under 

paragraph 15 (variation of type of licence or 

matters set out in licence), and 

(c) any revocation by the Council of a licence 

9. Display of Licence  

9.1.1 A copy of a site licence must be displayed at each 

site identified in the licence.  The copy must be 

displayed in a prominent place, in an area 

accessible to the public. 

9.1.2 A copy of a collector’s licence must be displayed 

on any vehicle that is being used in the course of 

the dealer’s business. This must be displayed in a 

manner which enables it easily to be read by a 

person outside the vehicle. 

10. Verification of Suppliers 

Identity  

10.1.1 A scrap metal dealer must verify the name and 

address of any person they receive scrap metal 

from.  

10.1.2 When verifying the person name and address, the 

scrap metal dealer must do so by way of 

documents, data or other information obtained 

from a reliable and independent source. 

10.1.3 Should verification not be gained then each of the 

following may be guilty of an offence: 

(a) the scrap metal dealer; 

(b) if metal is received at the site, the site 

manager; 

(c) any person who, under arrangements made 

by a person within sub-paragraph (a) or (b), 

has responsibility for verifying the name 

and address. 

11. Payment for Scrap Metal  

11.1.1 A scrap metal dealer must only pay for scrap 

metal by either: 

(a) a cheque (which is not transferrable under 

Section 81A Bills of Exchange Act 1882); or 

(b) electronic transfer of funds (authorised by a 

credit, debit card or otherwise). 

11.1.2 Payment includes payment in kind, for example 

goods or services. 

12. Record Keeping 

12.1 Receipt of Metal  

12.1.1 If any metal is received in the course of the 

dealer’s business the dealer must record the 

following information: 

(a) description of the metal, including its type 

(or, types if mixed), form, condition, weight 

and any marks identifying previous owners 

or other distinguishing features; 

(b) date and time of receipt; 

(c) the registration mark of the vehicle 

delivered by; 

(d) full name and address of person delivering 

it; 

(e) full name of the person making payment on 

behalf of the dealer; 

12.1.2 The dealer must keep a copy of any documents 

used to verify the name and address of the 

person delivering the metal. 

12.1.3 If payment if made via cheque, the dealer must 

retain a copy of the cheque. 

12.1.4 If payment is made via electronic transfer, the 

dealer must keep a receipt identifying the transfer 

or, if there is no receipt identifying the transfer, a 

record of particulars identifying the transfer. 

12.2 Disposal of Metal 

12.2.1 Where a scrap metal dealer disposes of metal in 

the course of business under a site licence, the 

following must be recorded: 

(a) description of the metal, including its type 

(or types if mixed), form and weight; 

(b) date and time of disposal; 

Page 33



 

Page 10 of 15 

  

(c) if to another person, their full name and 

address; 

(d) if payment is received for the metal (by sale 

or exchange) the price or other 

consideration received; 

12.2.2 If disposal is in the course of business under a 

collector’s licence, the dealer must record the 

following information: 

(a) the date and time of the disposal; 

(b) if to another person, their full name and 

address; 

12.2.3 The Act regards metal as being disposed of: 

(a) whether or not in the same form it was 

purchased; 

(b) whether or not the disposal is to another 

person; 

(c) whether or not the metal is despatched 

from a site; 

12.3 Supplementary  

12.3.1 The information in paragraph 12 must be 

recorded in a manner which allows the 

information and the scrap metal to which it 

relates to be readily identified by reference to 

each other. 

12.3.2 The records mentioned in paragraph 12.1 must be 

marked so as to identify the scrap metal to which 

they relate. 

12.3.3 Records must be kept for a period of 3 years 

beginning with the day on which the metal is 

received or (as may be the case) disposed of. 

12.3.4 If a scrap metal dealer fails to fulfil a requirement 

under paragraph 12 or this paragraph each of the 

following may be guilty of an offence: 

(a) the scrap metal dealer; 

(b) if the metal is received at or (as the case 

may be) despatched from a site, the site 

manager; 

(c) any person who, under arrangements made 

by a person within paragraph(a)or (b) has 

responsibility for fulfilling the requirement. 

13. Rights of Entry & Inspection  

13.1.1 A constable or an officer of the Council may enter 

and inspect a licensed site at any reasonable time 

on notice to the site manager. 

13.1.2 A constable or an officer of the Council may enter 

and inspect a licensed site at any reasonable time, 

otherwise than on notice to the site manager, if 

(a) reasonable attempts to give notice have 

been made and failed; or 

(b) entry to the site is reasonably required for 

the purpose of ascertaining whether the 

provisions of this Act are being complied 

with or investigating offences under it and 

(in either case) the giving of the notice 

would defeat that purpose. 

13.1.3 Paragraphs 13.1.1 and 13.1.2 do not apply to 

residential premises. 

13.1.4 A constable or an officer of the Council may: 

(a) require production of, and inspect, any 

scrap metal kept at any licensed premises;  

(b) require production of, and inspect, any 

records that are required to be kept in 

accordance with the Act; 

(c) take copies of or extracts from any such 

records. 

13.1.5 Officers of the Council will undertake where 

reasonable and practicable to give a notice of 

their powers and your rights on entry to any site 

licensed pursuant to the Act and the licence 

holder, site managers and other operatives 

should note that officers may use recording to 

assist them in their duties whilst on site. 

14. Application Procedure  

14.1 Term of Licence 

14.1.1 A licence is valid for three years beginning from 

the date it is issued. 

Page 34



 

Page 11 of 15 

  

14.1.2 If a renewal is received before the expiry of the 

existing licence the exiting licence will continue to 

have effect, and: 

(a) If withdrawn the licence expires at the end 

of the day of withdrawal. 

(b) If refused, and there is no appeal possible 

the existing licence will expire or, where 

there is a right of appeal the licence will not 

expire until any such appeal is finally 

determined or withdrawn. 

14.1.3 If a licence is renewed, the licence expires at the 

end of the three year period from the date of the 

renewal. 

14.2 Application 

14.2.1 The application form, available from the Licensing 

Department, should be accompanied by: 

(a) full name of applicant (if an individual), date 

of birth and usual place of residence; 

(b) name and registered number of the 

applicant (if a company) and registered 

office; 

(c) if a partnership – full name of each partner, 

date of birth and usual place of residence; 

(d) proposed trading name; 

(e) telephone number and email address (if 

any) of applicant; 

(f) address of any site within any other local 

authority at which carry on business as a 

scrap metal dealer or propose to do so; 

(g) any relevant environmental permit or 

registration in relation to the applicant; 

(h) details of any other scrap metal licence 

issued to the applicant within a period of 3 

years ending with the date of the 

application; 

(i) details of the bank account which is 

proposed to be used in order to comply 

with section 12 of the Act; 

(j) details of any relevant conviction or 

enforcement action taken against the 

applicant; 

14.2.2  For site licence, the applicant must also provide: 

(a) the address of each site proposed to be 

identified in the licence (or if renewal, each 

site identified for which renewal is sought); 

(b) the full name, date of birth and usual place 

of residence of each individual proposed to 

be named in the licence as a site manager 

(other than the applicant); 

(c) the information required under paragraph 

14.2.1 (g) (h) and (j) that relate to any 

individual being proposed as a site 

manager; 

14.2.3 Please note the collectors licence allows a 

business or individual to operate only within the 

Oldham area, therefore individuals wishing to 

collect across borders will be required to obtain a 

collectors licence from the relevant local authority 

where they wish to collect and sell. 

14.2.4 All applicants are required to provide a basic 

disclosure of criminal convictions with the 

application.  

15. Variation of Licence 

15.1.1 A licence may be varied from one type to the 

other. A variation application must be made to 

reflect changes to: 

(a) Site licence – the name of licensee, the 

sites, site manager  

(b) Collector’s licence – name of licensee 

15.1.2 The variation can amend the name of the licensee 

but cannot transfer the licence to another person. 

15.1.3 The application to vary a licence must be made to 

the issuing authority and contain particulars of 

the changes to be made to the licence. 

16. Renewal 

16.1.1 When a licence is renewed the three year validity 

period commences on the day of receipt.  Should 

Page 35



 

Page 12 of 15 

  

a renewal application be withdrawn, the licence 

expires at the end of the day on which the 

application is withdrawn. 

16.1.2 Where a renewal application has been refused – 

the licence expires when no appeal has been 

made under paragraph 2 of Schedule 1 of the Act 

or any such appeal has resulted in confirmation of 

the refusal. 

17. Further Information 

17.1.1 The Council may request (at the time of 

application or later) any additional information it 

considers relevant for the purpose of considering 

an application. 

17.1.2 Failure to provide such information may result in 

an application being declined. 

18. Fee 

18.1.1 An application must be accompanied by the fee, 

set by the Council. 

18.1.2 Any fee set will take into account guidance from 

the Secretary of State. 

19. Right to Make 

Representations 

19.1 Notice Period 

19.1.1 If the Council proposes to refuse an application or 

to revoke/vary a licence, a notice shall be issued 

to the applicant/licensee setting out what the 

Council proposes to do and the reasons for this. 

The notice shall also state that, within the period 

specified, the applicant/licensee can either: 

(a) make representations about the proposal; 

or 

(b) inform the authority that the 

applicant/licensee wishes to do so. 

19.1.2 The period specified in the notice shall be not less 

than 14 days beginning with the date on which 

the notice is given to the applicant/licensee.  

19.1.3 Within the period specified in the notice the 

applicant/licensee must notify the Council 

whether the applicant / licensee wishes to make 

representations.  

19.1.4 Should this period expire and the 

applicant/licensee has not made representations, 

or informed the Council of their wish to do so, the 

Council may refuse the application, or revoke or 

vary the licence. 

19.1.5 If, within the period specified in the notice, the 

applicant/licensee informs the Council that they 

wish to make representations, the Council will 

allow a reasonable period to make 

representations and may refuse the application or 

revoke or vary the licence if they fail to make 

representations within that period. 

19.1.6 If the applicant/licensee notifies the Council that 

they wish to make oral representations, the 

Council will give them the opportunity of 

appearing before, and being heard by, the 

Licensing Panel, or where the Council’s scheme of 

delegation allows, any officer delegated to hear 

such matters. 

19.2 Notice of Decision 

19.2.1 If the application is refused, or the licence is 

revoked or varied, notice shall be given to the 

applicant/licensee setting out the decision and 

the reasons for it. The notice shall also state that 

the applicant/licensee may appeal against the 

decision, the time within which the appeal may be 

brought (21 days beginning with the day on which 

notice of the decision was given) and, if revoked 

or varied, the date on which the revocation of 

variation is to take effect. 

19.3 Appeals 

19.3.1 An applicant may appeal to a magistrates’ court 

against the refusal of an application or a variation. 

The licensee may appeal to a magistrates’ court 

against the inclusion in a licence of a condition 

under Section 3(8) of the Act or the revocation or 

variation of a licence. 

19.3.2 An appeal must be made within 21 days beginning 

on the day the notice to refuse the application, to 

include the condition or to revoke or vary the 

licence was given. 

19.3.3 On appeal, the magistrates’ court may confirm, 

vary or reverse the authority’s decision, and give 

Page 36



 

Page 13 of 15 

  

such directions as it considers appropriate having 

regard to the provisions of the Act. 

20. Closure of Unlicensed Sites  

20.1 Closure Notice 

20.1.1 An authorised officer of the Council or, a 

constable, may issue a closure notice where they 

are satisfied that the premises are being used by a 

scrap metal dealer in the course of business and 

that the premises are not a licensed site.  

20.1.2 The closure notice will state the reasons for the 

closure notice being issued and specify the steps 

which may be taken to ensure that the alleged 

use of the premises ceases. 

20.1.3 The closure notice will also state the Council may 

apply to the Courts for a ‘closure order’, should 

the notice not be complied with. 

20.1.4 The notice shall be given to the person who 

appears to be the site manager of the premises 

and any person who appears to be a director, 

manager or other officer of the business in 

question. The notice may also be given to any 

person who has an interest in the premises. 

20.1.5 A person with an interest in premises is the 

owner, leaseholder or occupier of the premises. 

20.1.6 The notice shall be given to a person who 

occupies another part of any building or structure 

of which the premises form part and the 

constable or local Council believes at the time of 

giving the notice, that the person’s access to that 

other part would be impeded if a closure order 

were made in respect of the premises. 

20.2 Cancellation of Closure Notice 

20.2.1 A constable or the Council may cancel a closure 

notice. This takes effect when it is given to any 

one of the persons to whom the closure notice 

was given. This must also be given to any other 

person to whom the closure notice was given. 

20.3 Application for Closure Order 

20.3.1 When a closure notice has been given, a 

constable or the Council shall make a complaint 

to a justice of the peace for a closure order. This 

may not be made less than 7 days after the date 

on which the closure notice was given or more 

than 6 months after that date. 

20.3.2 A complaint under this paragraph may not be 

made if the constable or the Council are satisfied 

that the premises are not (or are no longer) being 

used by a scrap metal dealer in the course of 

business and there is no reasonable likelihood 

that the premises will be so used in the future. 

20.4 Closure Order 

20.4.1 A closure order requires that a premises be closed 

immediately to the public and remain closed until 

a constable or the Council makes a termination of 

closure order by certificate, the use of the 

premises by a scrap metal dealer in the course of 

business be discontinued immediately and that 

any defendant pay into court such sum as the 

court determines and that the sum will not be 

released by the court to that person until the 

other requirements of the order are met. 

20.4.2 The closure order may include a condition relating 

to the admission of persons into the premises, the 

access by persons to another part of any building 

or other structure of which the premises form 

part. 

20.4.3 A closure order may include such provision as the 

court considers appropriate for dealing with the 

consequences if the order should cease to have 

effect. 

20.4.4 As soon as practicable after the closure order is 

made, the complainant must fix a copy of it in a 

conspicuous position on the premises in respect 

of which it was made. 

20.4.5 A sum ordered to be paid into court under a 

closure order is to be paid to the designated 

officer for the court. 

20.5 Termination of Closure Order by Certificate 

20.5.1 Once a closure order has been made and a 

constable or the Council satisfied that the need 

for the order has ceased a certificate may be 

issued. This ceases the closure order and any sum 

paid into a court is to be released by the court to 

the defendant. 

20.5.2 As soon as is practicable after making a 

certificate, a constable or local authority must 

Page 37



 

Page 14 of 15 

  

give a copy to any person against whom the 

closure order was made, give a copy to the 

designated officer for the court which made the 

order and fix a copy of it in a conspicuous position 

on the premises in respect of which the order was 

made. 

20.5.3 A copy of the certificate must be given to any 

person who requests one. 

20.6 Discharge of Closure Order by Court 

20.6.1 A closure order may be discharged by complaint 

to a justice of the peace. This can be done by any 

person to whom the relevant closure notice was 

given or any person who has an interest in the 

premises but to whom the closure notice was not 

given. 

20.6.2 The court will make a discharge order if it is 

satisfied that there is no longer a need for the 

closure order. The justice may issue a summons 

directed to a constable as the justice considers 

appropriate or the local authority, requiring that 

person appear before the magistrates’ court to 

answer to the complaint. 

20.6.3 If a summons is issued, notice of the date, time 

and place at which the complaint will be heard 

must be given to all persons to whom the closure 

notice was given (other than the complainant). 

20.7 Appeal in relation to Closure Orders 

20.7.1 An appeal may be made to the Crown Court 

against a: 

(a) closure order; 

(b) decision not to make a closure order; 

(c) discharge order; 

(d) decision not to make a discharge order; 

20.7.2 The appeal must be made before the end of 21 

days beginning with the day on which the order or 

decision in question was made. 

20.7.3 An appeal under (a) or (b) above may be made by 

any person to whom the relevant closure notice 

was given or any person who has an interest in 

the premises but to whom the closure notice was 

not given. 

20.7.4 An appeal under (b) or (c) above may be made by 

a constable or the Council. 

20.8 Enforcement of Closure Order 

20.8.1 A person is guilty of an offence, if without 

reasonable excuse they permit premises to be 

open in contravention of a closure order, or fail to 

comply with, or do an act in contravention of a 

closure order. 

20.8.2 If the closure order has been made, a constable or 

an authorised officer of the Council may (if 

necessary using reasonable force) enter the 

premises at any reasonable time, and having 

entered the premises, do anything reasonably 

necessary for the purpose of securing compliance 

with the order. 

20.8.3 If the owner, occupier or other person in charge 

of the premises requires the office to produce 

evidence of identity or evidence of authority to 

exercise powers, the officer must produce that 

evidence. 

21. Offences & Penalties 

21.1.1 The following are prescribed by the Act as 

criminal offences: 

• Section 1 - Carrying on business as a scrap 

metal dealer without licence (level 5);            

• Section 8 -  Failure to notify authority of any 

changes to details given with application (level 

3); 

• Section 10 - Failure to display site licence or 

collectors licence (level 3); 

• Section 11(6) -  Receiving scrap metal without 

verifying persons full name and address (level 

3); 

• Section 11 (7) - Delivering scrap metal to dealer 

and giving false details (level 3);  

• Section12 (6) - Buying scrap metal for cash 

(level 5); 

• Section 13 - Failure to keep records regarding 

receipt of metal (level 5); 

• Section 14 - Failure to keep records regarding 

Page 38



 

Page 15 of 15 

  

disposal of metal (level 5); 

• Section 15(1) - Failure to keep records which 

allow the information and the scrap metal to 

be identified by reference to one another (level 

5); 

• Section 15(2) - Failure to keep copy of 

document used to  verify  name  and address of 

person bringing metal, or failure to keep a copy 

of a cheque issued (level 5); 

• Section 15(3) - Failure to keep information and 

records for three years (level 5); 

• Section 16 - Obstruction to right of entry and 

failure to produce records (level 3); 

• Section 17  - Where an offence under this Act is 

committed by a body corporate and it is 

proved— 

(a) to have been committed with the consent or 

connivance of a director, manager, secretary 

or other similar officer; or 

(b) to be attributable to any neglect on the part 

of any such individual, the individual as well 

as the body corporate is guilty of the 

offence and is liable to be proceeded 

against and punished accordingly; 

(c) where the affairs of a body corporate are 

managed by its members, subsection (1) 

applies in relation to the acts and omissions 

of a member in connection with that 

management as if the member were a 

director of the body corporate. 

22. Definitions  

“Licensed site” means a site identified in a 

scrap metal licence. 

“Mobile collector” means a person who— 

(a) carries on business as a scrap metal dealer 

otherwise than at a site; and 

(b) regularly engages, in the course of that 

business, in collecting waste materials and 

old, broken, worn out or defaced articles by 

means of visits from door to door. 

“Police officer” includes a constable of the 

British Transport Police Force. 

“Premises” includes any land or other place 

(whether enclosed or not). 

“Relevant environmental permit or 

registration“means— 

(a) any environmental permit under regulation 13 

of the Environmental (Permitting) Regulations 

2010 authorising any operation by the 

applicant in the local authority's area; 

(b) any registration of the applicant under 

Schedule 2 to those Regulations in relation 

to an exempt waste operation (within the 

meaning of regulation 5 of those 

Regulations) carried on in that area; 

(c) any registration of the applicant under Part 

8 of the Waste (England and Wales) 

Regulations 2011 (carriers, brokers and 

dealers of controlled waste). 

“Relevant offence” and “relevant enforcement 

action” have the meaning given by section 3(3) 

of the Scrap Metal Dealers Act 2013. 

“Site” means any premises used in the course 

of carrying on business as a scrap metal dealer 

(whether or not metal is kept there). 

“Site manager”, in relation to a site at which a 

scrap metal dealer carries on business, means 

the individual who exercises day-to-day control 

and management of activities at the site. (An 

individual may be named in a licence as site 

manager at more than one site; but no site 

may have more than one site manager named 

in relation to it). 

“Trading name” means a name, other than that 

stated in the licence under which a licensee 

carries on business as a scrap metal dealer. 

Page 39



Page 40

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

LICENSING COMMITTEE    

Private Hire and Hackney Carriage  
Vehicle Retest Items 

Report of Executive Director - Neighbourhoods 

Portfolio Responsibility: Cooperatives and Neighbourhoods  

 

26th November 2013 

 

 

Officer Contact: Russell Williams 

Ext: 3472 

 
 
Purpose of Report 

The purpose of this report is to ask Members to approve amendments to the items 
that fall under a major or minor fail on the private hire and hackney carriage vehicle 
compliance test. 

Recommendations 

Members are recommended to  
 

a) note the report, and 

b) agree the proposals as set out in appendix II.  

 

Agenda Item 8

Page 41



 

Page 2 of 8 Licensing\0000000 26
th
 November  2013 

LICENSING COMMITTEE   26
TH

 NOVEMBER 2013   

PRIVATE HIRE AND HACKNEY CARRIAGE VEHICLE- RETEST ITEMS 

REPORT OF EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR - NEIGHBOURHOODS 

PORTFOLIO RESPONSIBILITY: COOPERATIVES AND NEIGHBOURHOODS  

 

1 Purpose of Report 

1.1 The purpose of this report is to ask Members to approve amendments to the items that 
fall under a major or minor fail on the private hire and hackney carriage vehicle 
compliance test. 

2 Recommendations 

2.1 Members are recommended to  

a) note the report, and 

b) agree the proposals as set out in appendix II;  

3 Background  

3.1 On the 18th February 2013 The Council agreed its fees and charges in respect of private 
hire and hackney carriage licensing for the year 2013/14 

3.2 Following statutory consultation these fees and charges came into effect on the 2nd April 
2013. 

3.3 As part of the 2013/14 revised fees and charges, the Council agreed to introduce a 
staggered fee for the re-testing of private hire and hackney carriage vehicles failing the 
vehicle compliance test.  

3.4 The staggered fees agreed are:- 

a) Major re-test fee - £58 

b) Minor re-test fee - £20 

3.5 The fee to be paid will be determined by the items the vehicle fails its compliance test 
on.  

3.6 Whether the failure item falls under the ‘major’ or ‘minor’ re-test fee will be based on the 
potential time it will take to re-test the vehicle; and not on the severity of the fault.  

4 Current Position  

4.1 On the 11th June 2013 the Licensing Committee agreed, the table attached at appendix 
I, be used to show the items a vehicle can fail on; and whether the item(s) it might fail 
on would attract the ‘major’ or ‘minor’ re-test fee.  

4.2 As a result of a wide scale review of the fees and charges relating to hackney carriage 
and private hire licensing, officers have reviewed the operation of the re-test items and 
the fee they attract.  

Page 42



 

 

Page 3 of 8 Licensing\0000720 26
th
 November 2013 

 

4.3 As a result of this review officers are proposing to move the items that would attract the 
‘Major’ re-test fee to the ‘Minor’ re-test fee. The table attached at appendix II shows the 
proposal being put forward by officers with those items affected highlighted.  

4.4 It is not proposed to make any alteration to the items that currently attract the ‘minor’ re-
test fee, nor the ‘Free’ re-test items.  

5 Options 

5.1 Members have the option to:- 

a) keep the table attached at appendix I and use it to determine whether a ‘major’ 
or ‘minor’ retest fee applies; 

b) adopt the amended table at appendix II and use it determine whether a ‘major’ 
or ‘minor’ retest fee applies; 

6 Preferred Option  

6.1 The preferred option is to adopt the amended table attached at appendix II.  

Taking this option will mean the Council are fulfilling its duties to review its fees and 
charges; and will ensure the fee charge reflects the time spent on re-testing a vehicle.  

7 Consultation 

7.1 Selected members of the trade have been spoken to about the proposals and agree 
with the proposals.  

8 Legal Services Comments 

8.1 Under section 50(1) of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976, the 
Council may require the proprietor of a hackney carriage or a private hire vehicle to 
present the vehicle for inspection and testing by or on behalf of the Council within such 
period and at such place within the area of the Council as they may by notice 
reasonably require.  A vehicle can be tested up to 3 times a year under this section.  
Under section 70 of the Act, the Council may charge such fees for the grant of vehicle 
and operators licences as may be sufficient to cover in whole or in part the reasonable 
cost of the carrying out by or on behalf of the Council of inspections of hackney 
carriages and private hire vehicles for the purpose of determining whether any such 
licence should be granted or renewed. (A Evans)   

9 Environmental and Health & Safety Implications 

9.1 There are no environmental implications. 

10 Community Cohesion Implications [including Crime & Disorder Implications in 
accordance with Section 17 of the Act] and Equalities Implications 

10.1 The guidelines relating to the relevance of convictions are intended to protect all sectors 
of the community. 

11 Background Papers 

11.1 The following is a list of background papers on which this report is based in accordance 
with the requirements of Section 100(1) of the Local Government Act 1972.  It does not 

Page 43



 

 

Page 4 of 8 Licensing\0000720 26
th
 November 2013 

 

include documents which would disclose exempt or confidential information as defined 
by the Act : 

File Ref: Records held in Directorate 
Officer Name: Russell Williams 
Contact No: x3472 

 

12 Appendices  

12.1 Appendix I – existing list of ‘major’ and ‘minor’ fee items. 

Appendix II – proposed amendment to the existing list of ‘major’ and ‘minor’ fee items

Page 44



 Appendix I 

Retest Items and Relevant Fee 

Page 5 of 8 Licensing\0000720 26
th
 November 2013 

 

 No Fee Minor Fee Full Fee Comments 

Section 1 – Lighting  

Obligatory Front Lamps  X  For vehicles only failing on bulbs 

that have blown / gone there will 

be no re-test fee 

Obligatory Rear Lamps  X  

Obligatory Headlamps   X 

Headlamp Aim X   

Stop Lamps  X  

Rear Reflectors  X  

Direction Indicators  X  

Section 2 – Steering & Suspension 

Steering Control   X For vehicles only failing on the 

following steering / suspension 

items the minor fee will apply:- 
• Misaligned steering wheel; 
• Steering wheel to steering column 

securing device not fitted; 
• Steering wheel hub / spoke fractured; 
• Steering wheel rim cracked / 

damaged; 
• Incorrect steering wheel type; 

Steering Mechanism   X 

Power Steering    X 

Transmission Shafts   X 

Stub Axle Assemblies   X 

Wheel bearings   X 

Suspension   X 

Shock Absorbers   X 

Section 3 – Braking System 

ABS Warning System   X For vehicles only failing on a 

missing ‘anti-slip pad’ will result in 

no re-test fee. 

Service Brake Condition   X 

Parking Brake Condition   X 

Parking Brake Efficiency   X 

Service Brake Efficiency    X 

Service Brake Resilience   X 

Section 4 – Tyres & Wheels 

Tyre Type  X   

Tyre Condition  X  

Road Wheels  X  

Section 5 - Seat Belts 

Security of Mountings  X   

Condition of Belts  X  

Operation  X  

Section 6 - General Items 

Windscreen  X   

Windscreen Washers  X  

Windscreen Wipers  X  

Horn X   

Condition of Exhaust  X  

Effectiveness of Silencer  X  

Condition of Vehicle  X  

Structure  X  

Section 7 – Electrical Check 

Battery  X   

Battery Cables  X  

General Wiring  X  

Section 8 – Bodywork 

Doors  X   

 

 

 

 

Door Locks & Handles  X  

Windows & Mechanisms  X  

Boot Lock & Lid  X  

Fuel Cap  X  Page 45



 Appendix I 

Retest Items and Relevant Fee 

Page 6 of 8 Licensing\0000720 26
th
 November 2013 

 

 No Fee Minor Fee Full Fee Comments 

Section 9 – Seats & Body Interior 

Front Seat Mountings  X   

Rear Seats  X  

Occasional Seats  X  

Upholstery  X  

Section 10 – General Body Condition 

Body – External X   If, in the testers’ opinion, any 

damage / defect to the body work 

is deemed excessive or dangerous, 

requiring further investigation by 

the tester, the full retest fee will 

apply.    

Body – Internal X   

Boot – Interior  X   

Section 11 – Miscellaneous Items 

Mirrors Internal / External X   *If, in the testers’ opinion, any 

damage / defect to the bumper is 

deemed excessive or dangerous, 

requiring further investigation by 

the tester, the full retest fee will 

apply.   

Bumpers* X   

Plates securely affixed X   

Registration plates X   

Taximeter and bracket assembly X   

Exhaust emission X   

First Aid Kit X   

Fire Extinguisher X   

Tariff sheet X   

 

Page 46



 Appendix II 

Retest Items and Relevant Fee 

Page 7 of 8 Licensing\0000720 26
th
 November 2013 

 

 No Fee Minor Fee Full Fee Comments 

Section 1 – Lighting  

Obligatory Front Lamps  X  For vehicles only failing on bulbs 

that have blown / gone there will 

be no re-test fee 

Obligatory Rear Lamps  X  

Obligatory Headlamps  X  

Headlamp Aim X   

Stop Lamps  X  

Rear Reflectors  X  

Direction Indicators  X  

Section 2 – Steering & Suspension 

Steering Control  X   

Steering Mechanism  X  

Power Steering   X  

Transmission Shafts  X  

Stub Axle Assemblies  X  

Wheel bearings  X  

Suspension  X  

Shock Absorbers  X  

Section 3 – Braking System 

ABS Warning System  X  For vehicles only failing on a 

missing ‘anti-slip pad’ will result in 

no re-test fee. 

Service Brake Condition  X  

Parking Brake Condition  X  

Parking Brake Efficiency  X  

Service Brake Efficiency   X  

Service Brake Resilience  X  

Section 4 – Tyres & Wheels 

Tyre Type  X   

Tyre Condition  X  

Road Wheels  X  

Section 5 - Seat Belts 

Security of Mountings  X   

Condition of Belts  X  

Operation  X  

Section 6 - General Items 

Windscreen  X   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Windscreen Washers  X  

Windscreen Wipers  X  

Horn X   

Condition of Exhaust  X  

Effectiveness of Silencer  X  

Condition of Vehicle  X  

Structure  X  

Section 7 – Electrical Check 

Battery  X   

Battery Cables  X  

General Wiring  X  

Section 8 – Bodywork 

Doors  X   

 

 

 

 

Door Locks & Handles  X  

Windows & Mechanisms  X  

Boot Lock & Lid  X  

Fuel Cap  X  Page 47



 Appendix II 

Retest Items and Relevant Fee 

Page 8 of 8 Licensing\0000720 26
th
 November 2013 

 

 No Fee Minor Fee Full Fee Comments 

Section 9 – Seats & Body Interior 

Front Seat Mountings  X   

Rear Seats  X  

Occasional Seats  X  

Upholstery  X  

Section 10 – General Body Condition 

Body – External X   If, in the testers’ opinion, any 

damage / defect to the body work 

is deemed excessive or dangerous, 

requiring further investigation by 

the tester, the full retest fee will 

apply.    

Body – Internal X   

Boot – Interior  X   

Section 11 – Miscellaneous Items 

Mirrors Internal / External X   *If, in the testers’ opinion, any 

damage / defect to the bumper is 

deemed excessive or dangerous, 

requiring further investigation by 

the tester, the full retest fee will 

apply.   

Bumpers* X   

Plates securely affixed X   

Registration plates X   

Taximeter and bracket assembly X   

Exhaust emission X   

First Aid Kit X   

Fire Extinguisher X   

Tariff sheet X   

 

N.B – If the vehicle fails on a fault, or faults that would require a full ‘testing slot’ to be used 
for the re-test, then the ‘major’ re-test fee will apply. The decision on whether a vehicle 
requires a full ‘testing slot’ will be the decision of the vehicle examiner.  

‘testing slot’ means the 45 minute appointments pre-booked, by the Licensing section, with 
the Councils’ Testing Station.  

Page 48



 

 

LICENSING COMMITTEE    

Private Hire Operator Conditions   
 

Report of Executive Director - Neighbourhoods 

Portfolio Responsibility: Cooperatives and Neighbourhoods  

 

26th November 2013 

 

 

Officer Contact: Russell Williams 

Ext: 3472 

 
 
Purpose of Report 

The purpose of this report is to ask Members to approve changes to the current 
Private Hire Operator Conditions.  

Recommendations 

Members are recommended to agree the changes as outlined in the report.  

Agenda Item 9

Page 49



  

Licensing/0000721 
 

LICENSING COMMITTEE   26TH NOVEMBER 2013   

PRIVATE HIRE OPERATOR CONDITIONS  
REPORT OF EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR - NEIGHBOURHOODS 
PORTFOLIO RESPONSIBILITY: COOPERATIVES AND NEIGHBOURHOODS  

1 Purpose of Report 

1.1 The purpose of this report is to ask Members to approve changes to the current 
Private Hire Operator Conditions.  

2 Recommendations 

2.1 Members are recommended to agree the changes as outlined in the report.  

3 Background  

3.1 Private Hire Operators are granted a licence under the Local Government 
(Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976. Section 55 of that Act provides that a Local 
Authority may attach such conditions, as they may consider reasonably necessary, to 
a private hire operator’s licence.  

3.2 All licensed private hire operator are responsible for ensuring the vehicles and drivers, 
they use to full booking on behalf of their company, are licensed by the Local Authority.  

3.3 As part of this process operators are required to submit weekly returns to the licensing 
department detailing which drivers and / or vehicle have commenced working for them 
in the previous seven days. This ensures the Councils licensing database is kept up-
to-date and enables officers to check the validity of drivers who commence work for a 
private hire operator.  

3.4 In addition operators take part in the star rating scheme, which ensures the operator 
conducts their business to a standard set by the Council, with regular audits by 
officers; and action taken against operators who bring the scheme into disrepute.  

4 Current Position  

4.1 The current conditions attached to private hire operator’s licences do not require the 
operator to keep a copy of the licence, issued to a licensed private hire driver, who is 
then employed by the operator.  

4.2 The current conditions attached to a private hire operator’s licence require all 
operators to submit weekly returns to the licensing department detailing which drivers 
and / or vehicles have commenced working for them in the previous seven days. This 
condition is also a criterion on the star rating scheme, but only for 3 and 4 star 
companies.  

4.3 In order to assist operators in determining if a private hire driver, they wish to employ 
to undertake booking on behalf of their company, is licensed by the Council, officers 
are proposing to amend the conditions attached to a private hire operator. As part of 
this officers are also proposing making amendments to the star rating scheme to 
reflect the proposed changes to conditions.  

 

 

 Page 50



  

Licensing/0000721 
 

5 Proposals  

5.1 Officers are proposing the following:-  

a) make it a condition of an operator’s licence to keep a copy of a drivers ‘private 
hire driver licence’ when they start working for the operators;  

b) make it a condition of an operator’s licence to complete a weekly return of 
drivers and vehicles that start or finish with their company, even if there have 
been no changes. This will effectively mean an operator will have to submit a 
‘nil’ return to the licensing section; 

c) make it a condition of an operator’s licence that, should a company’s star rating 
be reviewed and the decision of that review be to reduce the operators star 
rating, the cost of replacing the existing star rating signs with the sign showing 
the reduced rating, be met by the operator and not the Council.  

d) transpose the conditions in (a) & (b) above into part of criterion of the Star 
Rating Scheme, from two star to four star;  

5.2 In addition to the above Members are asked to make it a condition of an operator’s 
licence that membership of the star rating scheme be mandatory.  

5.3 A copy of the current operator conditions are attached at appendix I  

5.4 A copy of the existing star rating scheme is attached at appendix II  

6 Options 

6.1 Members have the option to:- 

a) adopt the proposals as presented in paragraph 5 above; 

b) reject the proposals and keep the existing conditions and star rating criteria, 
make no amendments; 

7 Preferred Option  

7.1 Option A 

8 Consultation 

8.1 Officers consulted licensed operators and no comments were received from the trade.  

9 Legal Services Comments 

 
9.1 Under section 55(3) of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976, the 

Council may attach such conditions to the grant of a private hire operator’s licence as 
they may consider reasonably necessary.  Any person aggrieved by any conditions 
attached to a private hire operator’s licence may appeal to the magistrates’ court.  (A 
Evans) 

  

10 Environmental and Health & Safety Implications 

10.1 There are no environmental implications. 

Page 51



  

Licensing/0000721 
 

11 Community Cohesion Implications [including Crime & Disorder Implications in 
accordance with Section 17 of the Act] and Equalities Implications 

11.1 The guidelines relating to the relevance of convictions are intended to protect all 
sectors of the community. 

12 Background Papers 

12.1 The following is a list of background papers on which this report is based in 
accordance with the requirements of Section 100(1) of the Local Government Act 
1972.  It does not include documents which would disclose exempt or confidential 
information as defined by the Act : 

File Ref: Records held in Directorate 
Officer Name:  
Contact No:  

 

13 Appendices  

13.1 Appendix I – existing operator conditions;  

Appendix II – existing star rating scheme; 

Page 52



  

  

OLDHAM COUNCIL 
 

CONDITIONS FOR PRIVATE HIRE OPERATORS 

 
 

1. DEFINITIONS 
 
 For a legal definition of these terms, see the Local Government 

(Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976.  You can get a copy from the 
Licensing Office, the Library or a Solicitor. 

 
“Accredited Membership membership of a reward and recognition  
“Scheme” scheme aimed at promoting high 

standards for licensed drivers vehicle 
owners and operators approved by the 
Council 

 
"Authorised Officer" any Officer of the Council authorised in 

writing for the purposes of the Local 
Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) 
Act 1976 

 
 "The Council"  Oldham Metropolitan Borough Council 
 
 "The Operator"  a person who takes bookings for the 

vehicle 
 
 "The Private Hire Vehicle"  a motor vehicle constructed to seat 

fewer than nine passengers, other than 
a hackney carriage or public service 
vehicle which is provided for hire with 
the services of a driver for the purpose 
of carrying passengers 

 
 “Star Rating Scheme”  a scheme to recognise and reward good 

practice and rating Operators at a level 
between 0 and 4 stars following a 
Compliance Audit according to an 
approved scheme. 

 
2. PREMISES AND EQUIPMENT 

 
 a. The Operator shall obtain any necessary planning permission 

required for his/her premises and shall comply with any conditions 
imposed. 

 

Page 53



  

  

 b. The Operator shall provide adequate communication facilities and 
staff to provide an efficient service to the public using the operator’s 
facilities. 
 

 c. The Operator’s premises shall be kept clean and adequately 
heated, ventilated and lit. 
 

 d. The Operator shall ensure that any waiting area for the use of 
prospective hirers shall be provided with adequate seating, 
properly cushioned or covered, 
 

 e. The Operator’s radio equipment where installed shall be 
maintained in a sound condition and any defects shall be repaired 
promptly. 

   

 f. The Operator shall at no time cause or permit any audio equipment 
to be a source of nuisance, annoyance or interference to any other 
person. 
 

 g. The Operator shall obtain and maintain in force at all times a public 
liability insurance policy in respect of his/her premises and produce 
the same to an Authorised Officer or Constable on request. 

 

3. BOOKING FARES 
 
 a) When the Operator accepts a hiring he/she shall unless prevented 

by some sufficient cause, ensure that a licensed Private Hire 
Vehicle attends at the appointed time and place. 
 

 b) When the Operator accepts the hiring he/she shall specify to the 
hirer the fare or the rate of the fare for the journey to be undertaken 
and shall immediately enter all the details of the hiring legibly in the 
form prescribed if requested, by Condition 3c. 
 

Page 54



  

  

 c) The records of hirings accepted by the Operator required to be kept 
under Section 56 of the Local Government (Miscellaneous 
Provisions) Act 1976 shall contain the following details and it shall 
be the responsibility of the operator to ensure that the records are 
so kept:- 
 
i) The name and address of hirer 
ii) Time of pick-up 
iii) Point of pick-up 
iv) Destination 
v) Vehicle used 
 

 d) The Operator shall not dispose of any records of hirings required to 
be made by Condition 3 within six months of the latest hiring 
provided always that the operator shall not dispose of any record or 
records which an Authorised Officer has by notice in writing 
required him/her to keep until the period specified in such notice 
(not being longer than 12 months from the date of service of such 
notice) has expired. 
 

 e) The Operator shall produce such records of hirings referred to in 
Condition 3 (c) on request to any Authorised Officer or Constable 
for inspection. 

 
 
 
4. RECORD KEEPING AND RESPONSIBILITY 
 
 a) The Operator shall maintain an up-to-date list of the owners and 

registration numbers of all Private Hire Vehicles connected with the 
business and their drivers, which shall include insurance details of 
the vehicles and the expiry dates of driver’s badges and Private 
Hire Vehicle licences and any radio call sign used, and shall 
produce and release such list on request to any Authorised Officer 
of the Council or a Constable.    
 

 b) The Operator shall ensure that any Private Hire Vehicle operated 
by him/her from a base or premises situate within the Oldham 
Metropolitan Borough and any person driving the same is the 
subject of a current private hire driver’s licence issued by the 
Council. 
 

Page 55



  

  

 c) The Operator shall ensure that mandatory door signs are displayed 
at all times on Private Hire Vehicles operating from his/her 
company and that all such signs on all Private Hire Vehicles 
operating from his/her company are of the same design and style.  
Any change to the design of mandatory door signs is to be agreed 
with an Authorised Officer in advance.     

 

 d) The Operator shall complete a weekly return to the Council of any 
drivers who have commenced or ceased working from the 
company within the last seven days. 

   

 

5. COMPLAINTS 
 

 The Operator shall within seven days from the date of receipt thereof 
notify the Authorised Officer in writing of any complaint received by the 
Operator and not subsequently withdrawn relating to a contract for hire 
or purported contract for hire relating to or arising from his/her business. 

  

6. CONVICTIONS 

 The Operator shall notify the Council in writing of any conviction, caution, 
fixed penalty, anti social behaviour order or bind over against him/her 
immediately after the caution, fixed penalty, anti social behaviour order 
or bind over has been issued or the conviction and sentence imposed 
and shall provide such further information about the caution, fixed 
penalty, anti social behaviour order or bind over as the Council may 
require. 

 
7. CONDITION OF VEHICLES 
 

 The Operator shall ensure that all Private Hire Vehicles in the Operator’s 
fleet shall be maintained in a sound mechanical and structural condition 
at all times and be capable of satisfying the Council’s mechanical and 
structural inspection at any time during the continuance of the Council’s 
licence in respect of the vehicle. 

 
8. ADVERTISEMENTS 
 

a)   The Operator shall not cause or permit to be displayed in or on from 
 his/her premises or to be published in relation to the Operator’s 
business  any sign, notice or advertisement which consists of or 
includes the words  “Taxi” or “Cab” whether in the singular or plural or 
the words “For Hire”  or any other word or words of similar meaning or 

Page 56



  

  

appearance whether  alone or as part of another word or phrase or any 
other word or words  likely top cause a person to believe that any 
vehicle or vehicles operated  by him/her is or are hackney carriage or 
carriages.  The Operator shall be  permitted to display in or on his/her 
premises a notice of a size to be  approved in advance by the Council 
advertising the Operator’s  membership of an Accredited Membership 
Scheme. 

 
b)   All advertisements that are being placed by the Operator should 
first be approved by the Council to ensure they comply with 
conditions and do not breach the Advertising Standards Authority 
Codes of Practice and  those of the Portman Group relating to 
alcohol advertising. 

      c) When considering an application for the grant, renewal or 
amendment to an operator licence or advertising material should an 
authorised officer be of the view that a company name, advertising 
material or door sign could cause confusion to a member of the 
public as to whose services they have hired the Officer will refer the 
matter to the Licensing Panel to allow such operator to make 
representations and for a decision to be made whether to allow 
such change or not.   

 
9. NOTIFICATION OF CHANGE OF ADDRESS 
 

The Operator shall give notice in writing to the Council of any change of 
his/her address or the address of any of the premises from which he/she 
operates during the period of the licence 14 days prior to the change 
taking place. 
 

10. COMPLIANCE WITH LEGISLATION 
 
 This Licence is issued subject to compliance with the relevant provisions 

of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976. 
 
 
11. DUTY TO CO-OPERATE 
 
 The Operator shall co-operate fully with any Authorised Officer or 

Constable in respect of any enquiries made whether involving drivers or 
Private Hire Vehicles currently connected with the business or formerly 
connected with the business. 

 
 
 

Page 57



 

Page 10                                   Star Rating Scheme for Private Hire Operators                           June 2013 
 

 

Star Rating Scheme for 

Private Hire Operators 

 
 

 

 

 

 

Name of Company:  

Name of owner present:  

Date assessed:  

Assessed by:  

 

 

 

 

Page 58



 

Page 11                                   Star Rating Scheme for Private Hire Operators                           June 2013 
 

 

Contents  

 

Section Description Page Number 
(to be 

inserted) 

1. Introduction 2 

2. Licensing Objectives 2 

3. Assessment criteria 4 

4. Determination and Appeals 7 

5. Reviewing a Rating 7 

6. Guidance  8 

Page 59



 

Page 12                                   Star Rating Scheme for Private Hire Operators                           June 2013 
 

1 Introduction 

 

1.1 The aim of the star rating scheme is to promote the private trade within the Borough 
of Oldham and ensure that their high quality service is rewarded by the affixing of a 
number of stars on their vehicles together with financial rewards to vehicle owners 
who attain four stars. 

 

1.2 It is the Council’s wish that the holders of private hire operators licences within the 
Borough together with vehicle owners are able to gain the rewards of the scheme. 
In addition it allows the residents of the Borough and those visiting to make a free 
choice of who they wish to conduct business with via the number of stars awarded 
to a particular company. 

 

2  Licensing Objectives 

 

2.1 The Council has set objectives in relation to the licensing of the trade.   

 They are: - 

 (a) Ensuring passengers have safe journeys at a transparent price; 

 (b) Ensuring vehicles are safe, accessible and reducing their impact on the                  
      environment; 

 (c) Ensuring drivers are safe and know what they are doing; and 

 (d) To provide a quality service to the public within the Borough.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 60



 

Page 13                                   Star Rating Scheme for Private Hire Operators                           June 2013 
 

3 Assessment criteria 

 

3.1 Assessment of the number of stars awarded to each operator will be a series of 

indicators which will be assessed by a Licensing Officer in conjunction with the 

operator. 

 

3.2 It should be noted that dependant on the outcome of the assessment the number of 

stars awarded could go up as well as down. This is subject to the appeal provision 

covered in section four. 

 

3.3 Assessment will take place as detailed below which linked to the number of stars 

an operator currently has but could be reviewed at any time by either the Council or 

upon the request of the operator if he thinks he can achieve a higher award.  

  

 

 No stars Weekly 

 One star Monthly 

 Two stars 6 monthly 

 Three stars Yearly 

 Four stars Every 18 months 

 

 It is likely that in addition to the scheduled visit there may be a spot check  

 conducted from time to time to ensure ongoing compliance with the scheme. 

 
3.4 Detailed below are the criteria for two, three and four stars. Under that are the 

negative indicators that could result in a lower number of stars being awarded. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 61



 

Page 14                                   Star Rating Scheme for Private Hire Operators                           June 2013 
 

 TWO STARS 

Criteria Notes 

Any premises to be in a clean and tidy condition  

Any radio equipment used for communication with drivers to be in 
good working order and serviced and maintained. 

 

Public/employers liability insurance in force where required  

Current fare table produced and retained for file  

Booking records accurate and legible and retained for a minimum of 
six months. 

 

Details of all drivers, vehicles (including expiry dates) and insurance 
details held on file an accurate. Details produced for retention by 
Officer. 

 

Complaints outstanding after 7 days referred to Licensing Office.  

Mandatory door signs affixed to all vehicles with no magnetic signs 
in use. 

 

System in place for ensuring drivers/vehicles do not work following 
expiry of licence or insurance. 

 

Operator to have in place a written dress code for all drivers together 
with minimum standards as to the cleanliness of vehicles. 

 

75% of company vehicle fleet has passed the annual vehicle 

compliance test first time. (Doesn’t apply to single vehicle operators). 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 62



 

Page 15                                   Star Rating Scheme for Private Hire Operators                           June 2013 
 

 THREE STARS (two star criteria plus) 

Criteria Notes 

Encourage all drivers to attend Cabsafe training session  

All staff employed by the operator to have been trained on licensing 
law, how to deal with difficult situations and evidence of such training 
to be recorded by the operator. 

 

Lost property log in place  

Complaints procedure and log in place  

Fire and Health & Safety Risk assessments in place for the office  

Fire extinguishers in place and proof of annual service  

Evacuation plan of premises on display  

Policy in place for operator to check first aid kits in vehicles are in 
place, in date and complete once a year. 

 

A daily check of each vehicle be completed by its driver and the 
check sheet as prescribed by the Council by completed each day 
and submitted to the operator upon the sheet being complete 
whether, daily, weekly or monthly. Spot checks to take place by the 
operator to ensure the vehicle checks are taking place and defects 
noted and corrected. 

 

Where in car cameras are fitted they are to be compatible with Police 
data requirements and available for download. 

 

Reasonable assistance will be given to disabled people including 
assisting them to enter and exit offices, vehicles, make bookings for 
particular types of vehicle and carry any disability aids they may 
have. 

 

A policy to be in place for taking disciplinary action against any driver 
who takes advantage of a vulnerable person. 

 

All reasonable precautions to be taken to ensure that activities within 
the operators office and from licensed vehicles do not create a 
nuisance to others. 

 

The operator is to submit a weekly return to the Licensing Office 
detailing any new drivers taken on and any who have left. 

 

The operator is to submit a weekly return to the Licensing Office 
detailing any new vehicles taken on and any who have left. 

 

Page 63



 

Page 16                                   Star Rating Scheme for Private Hire Operators                           June 2013 
 

Adverts placed or distributed by the company to be approved by the 
Council first. 

 

A system of communicating key messages to drivers must be in 
place i.e. a driver notice board detailing information from the Police, 
Council or other agencies which drivers should know about.  

 

Company to attend Private Hire Forum unless reasonable 
explanation given in advance for non attendance. 

 

 FOUR STARS (two and three star criteria plus) 

Criteria Notes 

Drivers of wheelchair accessible vehicles can demonstrate 
knowledge of transporting passengers safely. 

 

Owner to have agreement with MOT Testing station to conduct a half 
yearly test on the basis that the Council will therefore only conduct 
one test a year. Content of the test to be agreed with the Council. 

 

Drivers to have been trained in advance driving skills through a 
mechanism agreed with the Council i.e. DVD or NVQ 

 

75% of drivers to have attend a Cabsafe training day  

Drivers written code of conduct to be in place  

Drivers who have more than one licensing conviction or road traffic 
conviction from a licensing prosecution within a 3 year period will not 
be allowed to work from the company. 

 

At least 50% of drivers will have been trained in basic first aid.  

All drivers of wheelchair accessible vehicles trained in basic first aid  

Customer Service charter to be in place  

Where the company operates 10 or more vehicles there must be a 
wheelchair accessible vehicle on the fleet. 

 

Where a 4 star company undertakes their own half yearly vehicle 

test a copy of the testing record must be kept by the operator. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 64



 

Page 17                                   Star Rating Scheme for Private Hire Operators                           June 2013 
 

Negative Indicators 

 

ONE STAR 

 

Criteria Notes 

Weak management performance relating to 
oversight of company. 

 

Failing to comply with operator licence 
conditions 

 

Premises in poor condition  

No public liability insurance where needed  

Additional input from Officers required in 
order to meet operator conditions. 

 

No procedure in place for checking expired 
licences or insurance. 

 

Operator not taking action to deal with 
drivers following complaints. 

 

 

NO STARS 

 

Criteria Notes 

Obstruction of Officers or failure to co-
operate with enquiries 

 

Prosecution of operator  

Allowing un-licensed drivers to drive vehicle  

Very poor management oversight of the 
company. 

 

Allowing unlicensed drivers or vehicles to 
work from the company. 

 

 

Page 65



 

Page 18                                   Star Rating Scheme for Private Hire Operators                           June 2013 
 

4 Determination & Appeals  

 

4.1 Once the criteria have been assessed by a Licensing Officer and the form 
 completed a decision will be made on the number of stars to be awarded by the 
 Principal Licensing Officer. If the vehicle owner is aggrieved by the number of stars 
 awarded he may lodge a written appeal within 7 days which will result in an 
 appearance before the Licensing Panel.    

 

4.2 A certificate will then be forwarded to the vehicle owner and door signs for placing 
 on the vehicle with the relevant number of stars attached. 

5 Reviewing a Rating 

 

5.1 If in the opinion of an Officer, of the rank of Principal Officer or above, the integrity 
 of the star rating scheme relating to a particular operator/driver has been brought 
 into disrepute he may refer the matter to the Licensing Drivers Panel. The Panel 
 shall then determine, having heard from all parties, what action, if any, they wish to 
 take in relation to the number of stars awarded to that operator.  

6 Guidance notes 

 

6.1 The Licensing Officer must ensure that the audit is completed in the presence of 

 the vehicle owner. 

 

6.2 The box below must be completed. 

 

Signature for Company  

 

 

Signature of Licensing Officer 

 

 

Date Conducted 

 

 

Page 66



 

Page 19                                   Star Rating Scheme for Private Hire Operators                           June 2013 
 

Number of Stars Awarded 

 

 

Signature of Trading Standards & Licensing 
Manager 

 

 

Date of Decision 

 

 

 

Notes 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 67



Page 68

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

LICENSING COMMITTEE 

On-line licensed driver checks with 

DVLA  

Report to Executive Director - Neighbourhoods 

Portfolio Responsibility: Cooperatives & Neighbourhoods  

 

26 November 2013  

 

Officer Contact: John Garforth  

Ext. 5026  

 
 
 

Purpose of Report 

The purpose of this report is to ask Members to approve a policy in relation to 
checking driver licence records on-line with DVLA. 

Recommendations 

Members are recommended to:- 
 

a) note the report; 

b) approve the new application criteria for the checking of driver records.  

Agenda Item 10

Page 69



 

Page 2 of 3 Licensing\0000723 26 November 2013 

LICENSING COMMITTEE 26 NOVEMBER 2013 

ON-LINE LICENSED DRIVER CHECKS WITH DVLA 
REPORT TO EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR - NEIGHBOURHOODS 
PORTFOLIO RESPONSIBILITY: COOPERATIVES & NEIGHBOURHOODS 

1 Purpose of Report 

1.1 The purpose of this report is to ask Members to approve a policy in relation to checking 
driver licence records on-line with DVLA. 

2 Recommendations 

2.1 Members are recommended to:- 

a) note the report; 

b) approve the new application criteria for the checking of driver records.  

3 Introduction  

3.1 As part of the fit and proper person test in order to licence hackney carriage and private        
hire drivers the Council has to ensure relevant checks are undertaken in relation to both 
criminal records and driving licence endorsements.   

3.2 Officers currently ask to see the drivers DVLA paper and photo card licence in order to 
check for any endorsements, disqualification or fines for motoring offences.  There are 
occasions where either a licence cannot be produced as it is lost or stolen and cannot 
be found. This causes delays in processing applications. There are also times where 
Officers are concerned about a clear licence being produced where records show that 
licences have previously had endorsements on. 

4 Proposals  

4.1 It is proposed to enter into an agreement with the Driver and Vehicle Licensing Agency 
who provide services to Councils to log on securely to a website and, with the drivers 
written consent, check that driver record for any matters which may affect the granting 
or renewing of a licence.  

4.2 This service is increasingly used by Councils as a way of speeding up the processing of 
applications and ensuring that false information is not given to Officers in order to 
prevent applicants from obtaining a private hire and hackney carriage drivers licence.  

4.3 Members are therefore requested to approve the use of this system and make it a 
mandatory part of the application process.  

5 Options / Alternatives 

5.1 Members have the option to:- 

a) adopt the proposed approach as outlined above; or 

b) continue to operate under current paper based systems. 

Page 70



 
 

Page 3 of 3 Licensing\0000723 26 November 2013 

 

6 Legal Services Comments 

6.1 Under section 57 of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976, the 
Council may require any applicant for a hackney carriage vehicle licence, hackney 
carriage driver’s licence, private hire operator’s licence, private hire vehicle licence or 
private hire driver’s licence to submit to it such information as it may reasonably 
consider necessary to enable it to determine whether the licence should be granted and 
whether conditions should be attached to any such licence.  Under section 70 of the Act 
the Council may charge such fees for the grant of vehicle and operators’ licences as 
may be sufficient to cover any reasonable administrative and other costs in connection 
with the control and supervision of hackney carriages and private hire vehicles. (A 
Evans) 

7       Financial Implications 

7.1 Each check would cost the Council £1 and would be paid out of the current licensing 
budget.  

8 Consultation 

8.1 Consultation has taken place with the Private Hire and Hackney Forums who did not 
object to the proposals. 

9 Environmental and Health & Safety Implications 

8.1 None 

10 Community Cohesion Implications [including Crime & Disorder Implications in 
accordance with Section 17 of the Act] and Equalities Implications 

10.1 The council has duty to protect the public under its Crime and Disorder duties.  

11 Background Papers 

11.1 The following is a list of background papers on which this report is based in accordance 
with the requirements of Section 100(1) of the Local Government Act 1972.  It does not 
include documents which would disclose exempt or confidential information as defined 
by the Act :  None 

File Ref: Records held in Directorate 
Officer Name: Russell Williams 
Contact No: 3472 

12 Appendices  

12.1 None 

Page 71



Page 72

This page is intentionally left blank



G:\common\licensing/0000722 Page No 1 

 

 

 
 

Scheme of Delegation for Licensing  
 
 

LICENSING COMMITTEE 

 
26

th
 November 2013  

 
Report of Executive Director - Neighbourhoods 
Portfolio Responsibility: Cooperatives & Neighbourhoods 

 
 
Officer Contact: John Garforth 
Ext No: 5026 
 
 
 
PURPOSE OF REPORT 

  
 The purpose of this report is to update the scheme of delegation for licensing 

matters and delegate the Executive Director (Neighbourhoods) with the necessary 
powers to further delegate operational decisions to Officers.  
 
 
 

RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
Members are recommended to approve the report.  

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SCHEME OF DELEGATION FOR LICENSING 

Agenda Item 11

Page 73



G:\common\licensing/0000722 Page No 2 

 

1.0 PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 

 1.1 The purpose of this report is to update the scheme of delegation for licensing 
 matters and delegate the Executive Director (Neighbourhoods) with the 
 necessary powers to further delegate operational decisions to Officers.  
 
 

2.0 INTRODUCTION  
 
2.1 In accordance with Part 3 of the Councils Constitution the Licensing 

Committee has the power to determine all licensing applications received.   
 
2.2 On a day to day basis it is not practical for the several thousand applications  
 that are received to the all determined by the Licensing Committee or its 
 panels. In addition there are also occasions where urgent decisions need to 
 be taken.  
 
2.3 The Constitution allows for the Committee to delegate its functions to the 
 Executive Director who, in turn, can delegate to Officers for the smooth 
 running of the licensing function.  
 
 

3.0 THE ADMINISTRATION OF LICENCES 

 
3.1 The Licensing Committee is responsible for a range of functions which 

include: 
 

• Private hire and hackney carriages 

• Gambling premises 

• Alcohol, entertainment and late night refreshment 

• Street trading 

• Highways licences 

• Animal licensing 

• House to house and street collections 

• Marriage premises 

• Sexual entertainment venues and shops 

• Housing licences 

• Scrap metal 

• Other small scale licensing permissions 
 
 
3.2 The majority of licences do not require a hearing and are determined under 

delegated powers granted by the Committee to the Executive Director and 
further delegated to Officers to deal with.  

 
 
 
 
 

Page 74



G:\common\licensing/0000722 Page No 3 

3.3 There are occasions where a hearing is convened due to legislation or local 
delegations not allowing for Officer determination. In such circumstances a 
Panel of Elected Members is convened. These circumstances include:- 

 

• Convictions held by proposed or current licenced drivers 

• Private hire operators 

• Objections to premises licences of various sorts 

• Objections to scrap metal applications 

• Objections to or reviews of street trading licences 
 
 
3.4 Where Officers determine applications or review licences this falls within the 

sub delegation from the Executive Director to such Officers. The types of 
matters Officers deal with include: 

 

• Premises licences where no objections are outstanding; 

• Licences for private hire or hackney carriage licences where no 
convictions or conduct issues arise or where recorded crime is at a low 
level and often falls outside the AGMA guidelines for referral to 
Members; 

• Street trading consent applications; 

• Suspension of licences due to urgency i.e. medical incapability or other 
reasonable cause such as vehicle defects; 

• Revocation of licences where there are serious concerns about the 
conduct of licenced drivers. This could be where a driver has been 
arrested for a sexual or violent offence where immediate action needs 
to be taken. In such circumstances liaison with the Chair or Vice Chair 
of the Committee would take place when an Officer is making a 
decision in such urgent circumstances. 

 
 

4.0 THE DELEGATIONS 
 
4.1 Members are therefore requested to delegate the following functions 
 surrounding licences, registrations and permissions to the Executive Director 
 (Neighbourhoods) who in turn will further delegate to Officers:- 
 

• Grants  

• Renewals 

• Refusals 

• Variations 

• Suspensions 

• Cancellations 

• Revocations 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

5.0 CONSULTATION 

Page 75



G:\common\licensing/0000722 Page No 4 

 
5.1 All teams affected by the proposed changes have been consulted on the 

implications of this scheme of delegation. When drafting the Officer 
delegations to present to the Executive Director the Chair of Licensing will be 
consulted as part of that process.  

 

6.0 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
6.1 None  
 

7.0 LEGAL SERVICES’ COMMENTS 

 
7.1 Under Part 3 of the Council Constitution, the Licensing Committee has 

delegated powers to consider and determine all applications for licences and 
permissions issued by or on behalf of the Council, including attaching 
conditions thereto, to consider and determine all applications for review, 
continuation, transfer, variation, renewal, suspension, closure orders, 
forfeiture or revocation of all licences and permissions issued by or on behalf 
of the Council, including attaching conditions thereto.  The Committee may 
delegate any of these functions to be discharged by the Executive Director, 
who may in turn delegate such powers, duties, responsibilities and functions 
as she considers appropriate to officers of the Council. (A Evans) 

 

8.0 ENVIRONMENTAL IMPLICATIONS 

 
8.1 None 

 

9.0 HEALTH AND SAFETY IMPLICATIONS 

 
9.1 There are no Health and Safety implications. 
   

10.0 COMMUNITY COHESION IMPLICATIONS (INCLUDING CRIME AND 

DISORDER IMPLICATIONS IN ACCORDANCE WITH SECTION 17 OF THE 

ACT) 

 
10.1 Licensing is a key element of the council’s commitment to ensuring a 

reduction in crime and disorder and the promotion of community cohesion. 

 

11.0 FORWARD PLAN REFERENCE 
 
11.1 This is not a key decision. 

Page 76


	Agenda
	5 Minutes of Previous Meeting
	6 Licensing Activity Report
	7 Scrap Metal Dealers Policy
	0000719 - Appendix 1 Scrap Metal Dealers Policy.doc

	8 Private Hire & Hackney Carriage Re-test items
	9 Private Hire Operator Conditions
	10 Online Driver checks with DVLA
	11 Scheme of Delegation for Licensing

